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FYITH
Shenzhen City

Chongging City
EE®

2 piped gas projects, including Tongnan Project.
EEBMRRIAR  EP e ERER -

1 LPG project located in Chongging City.
MERIERBEUNEET -

Fujian Province
mEE

37 piped gas projects of which covers 8 out of 9 regions in Fujian Province including Zhangzhou; Longyan;
Minging; Yong'an; Fuding and Ningde projects. R _
EEMREE #37E EBERELNMERMSE K FEEM B 5 k& BRREESHEE -

ERAMKBAE

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region

1 LPG project located in Baise City.
1MERIERBEBENRBEET -

Guizhou Province

BME

A total of 9 LPG projects, including Guizhou; Changshun; Southwest Panva; Zunyi Panva and Xingyi Panva projects.
BIEREAHOE EPFEEMN RIE-BIfAR BEAIREEAIEIEA -

1 Lottery agency pr(zét'ect with 15 welfare lottery betting stations operated.

MEREREEE - £RRSERME R T -

Hunan Province
HEE

6 LPG projects in total including Huaihua and Xupu Projects.
RAERIER #6ff EhBEEERBHEEIER -

Jilin Province

EHE

1 gas project located in Yanbian.

MERARIR B AR TEE -

Shaanxi Province
Tig)

A total of 2 piped gas projects, including Yanliang and Fuping projects.
EEMAEE K2 BEMRREFEA -

1 LPG project located in Xi‘an City.

AR RIBELRART -

Shenzhen City
R

3 Lottery agency pr%ct{with 96 welfare Io}}glg/ betting stations operated.
3MEFERIZIEE - HF R6ME R IR ZRFuk -

Sichuan Province
&

A total of 5 piped gas projects, including Mianzhu; Yanting; Hanwang and Beichuan projects.
EEMAEE A HhEAT B 2 RIS HEE -

1 LPG project located in Chengdu City.

MERAL RIE B LR ER T -

Tianjin City
P-4

1 LPG project located in Tianjin City.
MERIERIE B (LR RET

Yunnan Province

EFE

A total of 9 LPG pro'ﬁects, including Yunnan Civigas; Yunnan Panva and Baoshan Panva projects.

RACRIA B #9f TEEEETR EEAEIERIUBITISAER -

RPIEBRIES /T

The provinces/cities in which we operate
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and all of its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2014 to the Shareholders.

Under the strong leadership of the management and with all
employees’ hard work, we continued to maintain a positive
development momentum in the year 2013-2014. Our revenue and net
profit for this financial year reached approximately RMB832.6 million
and RMB57.9 million, respectively, profit attributable to Shareholders
was RMB47.3 million, and earnings per Share was RMB0.81 cents.

The number of newly-connected piped gas household and industrial &
commercial customers were 146,262 units and 954 units, respectively,
during this financial year, representing year-on-year increases of
33.75% and 16.34%, respectively, from last year. As at 31 March
2014, the accumulated number of piped gas household and industrial
& commercial customers amounted to 790,937 units and 5,402 units,
respectively. Total sales volume of piped gas was approximately 421.57
million m3, representing a year-on-year increase of 18.88% from last
year.

During this financial year, sales volume from transportation, distribution
and retail of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) was approximately
146,740 tons, representing an increase of 53.64% from last year. With
sales volume increasing as market share expands, as well as continuous
demand from existing customers, LPG sales volume will reach another
record high.

As for lottery business, as a result of our cost control measures, losses
narrowed this year compared to last year, but still did not make a
profit. We are reviewing the direction of our lottery business.
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We have developed a total of fifteen (15) new projects during the year,
including six (6) piped gas projects and nine (9) LPG projects. The piped
gas projects are mostly located in Chongging City and Fujian Province,
the China while the LPG projects are situated in Yuxi City, Yunnan
Province, Baise City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, Xingyi City
and Changshun County, Guizhou Province, Zhijiang County, Hunan
Province, Chongging City, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, Xi‘an City,
Shaanxi Province, and Tianjin City, the China.

As at 31 March 2014, we maintained a healthy financial position
to cope with future development and opportunities. Our debt-to-
capitalisation ratio, representing the ratio of total borrowings to
borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
4.61% (2013: 4.42%).

During the year, the economic and social development of China
progressed and improved steadily, getting off to a good start.
According to the “Statistical Report on the National Economy and
Social Development of China 2013" issued by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, the annual GDP of China for 2013 amounted
to approximately RMB56.8845 trillion, representing an increase of
approximately 7.7% as compared to last year. Our good performance
across business segments was based on China’s positive economic
development momentum in 2013.
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Natural gas consumption grew fast in 2013. According to a news
update of the National Development and Reform Commission,
apparent consumption of natural gas reached 169.2 billion m?3,
representing an increase of approximately 12.9%.

According to China’s energy consumption structure in 2013,
currently China’s energy consumption remains far higher than its
environment carrying capacity. As the restrictions on use of resources
and environment tighten, the prospect of energy saving and emission
reduction is bleak. To this end, the Chinese government announced a
series of policies in 2013, which aimed to increase the share of natural
gas consumption in total energy consumption. The Twelfth Five-Year
Plan on Energy Development, issued in January 2013, specifically
requires the energy consumption structure to be optimised that by
2015 the share of natural gas in primary energy consumption shall
increase to 7.5%. The Guiding Opinions on Energy Work in 2014 (2014
FERITIEFEEE ) issued in January 2014 state that the Chinese
government shall capture the opportunities arising from the prevention
and treatment of air pollution by accelerating outdated production
capacity in the energy industry, gradually implementing “coal-to-gas”
upgrade, and making great efforts into reducing the share of coal
consumption and increasing the share of consumption of natural gas
and non-fossil energy in total energy consumption. In 2014, the share
of natural gas in primary energy consumption rose to 6.5%.
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In order to meet existing and future huge demand for natural gas, the
Chinese government also strengthened its efforts to develop natural
gas production capacity, so as to ensure the use of natural gas to treat
environment protection and the long-term effective implementation
of sustainable development policies. In January 2014, the Ministry of
Land and Resources held a press conference to announce the results of
dynamic evaluation of oil and gas resources in China. The preliminary
statistics showed that China’s natural gas production reached a record
high in 2013, and that the target oil and gas production for phase 1 of
the “Breakthrough Strategy for Mineral Exploration” (k& 28 4 B{ B& 17
&) had been exceeded in 2013. It is worth mentioning that substantial
progress had been made in natural gas exploration in central Sichuan
Basin, adding a measured natural gas reserve of 420 billion m3, which
represents the largest monomer gas reservoir in China. The Circular
on lIssuing the Guiding Opinions on Energy Work in 2014 (R E]
E014F LR TIEIEEE RAEA), recently promulgated by the
National Energy Administration, stated its goal of reaching an annual
shale gas production of 1.5 billion m? by 2014 and an annual shale gas
production capacity of 6.5 billion m* by 2015.

The Chinese government continued to strengthen its construction
of natural gas infrastructure in recent years, paving the way for
continuous rapid growth of natural gas utilisation. With the completion
and putting into operation of the West-to-East gas pipeline, Sichuan-
to-east gas pipeline, Shaanxi-Beijing, China-Burma and China-Guizhou
natural gas pipelines, a natural gas pipeline network with diversified
gas sources has substantially formed in China, which has provided
reliable channels to secure safe supply of natural gas. A nationwide
natural gas supply network has been established in China which
stretches from south to north, crosses north-eastern China and is
connected to foreign countries, creating a gas supply landscape of
“transmission of gas from west to east, from Burma to north and from
offshore to onshore, and supply to adjacent foreign countries” (7%,
R Asmde g RE R g SME). With the construction of a
number of natural gas pipelines including the West-to-East line 3, line
4 and line 5, a nationwide natural gas supply landscape with diversified
sources, flexible distribution and transportation and stable supply will
further come into being in China.
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In the face of great opportunity of natural gas, we will strive to seize
this great opportunity to drive our piped gas business to a higher level
of development.

With the development of petrochemical industry, LPG draws more
attention as a basic raw material for chemical industry and a new
type of fuel. In chemical production, LPG can be turned into ethylene,
propene, butylene and butadiene through separation in order to
produce neoprene, synthetic rubber, synthetic fibre and products such
as pharmaceuticals, explosives and dyestuff. Since it is of high heat
value, free of smoke, dust and carbon residue and easy to use, LPG
has been widely applied in people’s life as a fuel. Besides, LPG can also
be applied in areas including slicing of non-ferrous metal, baking of
agricultural products and roasting of industrial stoves.

While the rapid growth of natural gas consumption became to a
certain extent an obstacle for the development of LPG market, LPG still
maintained stable and gradual growth from 2008 to 2013. In 2013,
China’s demand for LPG amounted to approximately 25.45 million
tons, representing an increase of approximately 3.2% from 2012. Its
LPG production was approximately 22.65 million tons, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 0.13%. Although there
are various substitutes for LPG, China’s rapid economic growth and
industrial development will contribute to the enormous demand for
energy. Accordingly, shortage of energy supply will still exist. A huge
room of development for LPG is determined by the diversification of
energy and the needs for complement among energies. The Chinese
LPG market has long been in line with the international market.
On the other hand, the development of natural gas is restricted by
transmission pipelines and resource supply amount, LPG enjoys a large
market scale in medium and small towns, large scale rural areas and
city borders where natural gas pipelines cannot be reached. With the
urbanisation progress in China, the government’s implementation of
environment treatment measures, higher expectations for the quality of
life and environment and growing urban and rural household income,
demand for LPG will continue to grow, creating huge potential for the
growth.
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As such, we will make full use of government policies and capture
market opportunities to expand our share and presence in our existing
regional markets. We will speed up our research of new markets and
seek opportunities to develop our existing markets while actively
expanding into new markets. We will pay close attention to market
developments and government policy updates in order to quickly seize
new opportunities in the LPG market. We will endeavour to further
develop our LPG business by leveraging the regional characteristics of
LPG consumption to further optimise our revenue mix and enhance the
value of the Company, bringing considerable return for investors.

China’s lottery market maintained rapid growth in 2013. With
lottery buyers showing great interest in buying lotteries, lottery
sales in China reached a new high. China’s lottery sales totalled
approximately RMB309,325 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately RMB47,801 million, or 18.3%. Sales from
welfare lotteries institutions were approximately RMB176,528 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately RMB25,496
million, or approximately 16.9%; sales from sports lotteries institutions
were approximately RMB132,797 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately RMB22,305 million, or approximately 20.2%.

In 2014, China’'s economy will maintain strong fundamentals. With
improving external environment and market estimates, its economic
reform measures will hopefully stimulate economic growth. While
ensuring strong development of our existing business, we will fully
leverage our own advantages to facilitate comprehensive development
across all business segments. We will strive to maximise the benefits
for our shareholders, customers and employees and contribute to the
overall development of the society.
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby gratefully acknowledge the staunch RAABREREARAEEGH I BRERTEER

support of all shareholders and the community over the year. —FIREE I T FBUAR O R
Dr. Mo Shikang EHEEL
Chairman FE

Beijing, 27 June 2014 b= - 20149F6 H278



For the year ended 31 March 2014, under the leadership of the
directors and management of our Group, all of our staff executed
the development strategies unswervingly and proactively and worked
through some difficulties, thus successfully completing various tasks for

the year.

Items
HH

Revenue:
Piped gas business
Transportation, distribution and
retail of LPG business
Lottery agency business

Total

Gross profit:
Piped gas business
Transportation, distribution and
retail of LPG business
Lottery agency business

Total

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Fair value change of contingent
consideration

Loss on derecognition of
compensation receivable

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

property, plant and equipment

Gain on bargain purchase of acquisition of

an associate
Share-based payment expense
Other income and expenses (net)
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31MHLEE

2013
RMB’000
ARETT
414,087

353,546
1,823

769,456

107,130

50,665
(7,359)

150,436

6,548
71,188

60,000

(32,585)

(601,608)

(4,266)
22,330

(136,258)

Changes
25

RMB’000
ARBTR
34,018

26,231
2,890

63,139

12,042

5,321
1,278

18,641

8,558
25,506

(60,000)
(60,000)
32,585
601,608

4,266
(22,330)

(25,611)
9,236



Items
HH

Profit (loss) before tax
Income tax (expense) credit

Profit (loss) for the year

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of the
Company

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share)

PR RS (B18)
PEd (Ax)ER

AEREN (BE)

ZNYNECTEZ DN S bR
(EE)

FraM (E8)
EXN#E (K
ARED)

For the year ended 31 March
BE3A31MHLEE

2013
RMB’000
ARBTT

(464,215)
138,680

(325,535)

(335,415)

(5.77)

Changes

28
RMB’000
ARBTR

532,459
(148,981)
383,478

382,713

6.58



Items
HH

Profit (loss) before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Finance costs

Fair value change of
contingent consideration

Loss on derecognition of
compensation receivable

Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Gain on bargain purchase of
acquisition of an associate

Share-based payment expense

Core profit

Breakdown of core profit:
The Group
Associates and joint ventures

R ADE A (E1R)

BT 51 B fE
8 0 3
R AR A
HARE 2

DA EE
R 1 4 A R
28

BB R

R

B3k 7 A R
R

SETEN T
0w 2 A E
VR — R A2

B AR 2

IABR 19 B 2 9 1 SR 2

B R

BOENOASD
ZN- e
e RAINAEELE

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BLEE

2013
RMB’000
ARET T
(464,215)
53,001
2,763

(60,000)

32,585
601,608
4,266

(22,330)

147,678

69,942
77,736

147,678

Changes
28

RMB’000
ARET T
532,459
(30,111)
6,201
60,000
60,000
(32,585)
(601,608)

(4,266)

22,330
25,611

38,031

3,967
34,064

38,031



Notes:

Revenue:

Piped gas business:

Transportation, distribution and
retail of LPG business:

Lottery agency business:

Share of results of joint ventures/

associates:

The increase is mainly due to the
increase of number of new connected
customers and the increase in gas sold
as a result of the synergic effect from
the equity transfer and capital injection
with Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas
Co., Ltd. The enlarged gas pipeline
connection enhance our capabilities
of gas supply in Shaanxi Province and
thus capture the increasing energy
consumption demand in those areas.

The increase is mainly due to the
increase in the distribution of LPG gas
tanks in Yunnan Province and exploring
new LPG markets.

The increase in number of lottery
stations operated and the lottery agency
business entered into Guizhou Province
led to the increase in revenue.

It represented the share of profits
from our joint ventures and associates
which principally engaged in the piped
gas and transportation, distribution
and retail of LPG in Fujian Province;
Yunnan Province and Guizhou Province
respectively. Benefiting from the
increase in number of connected and
increase in gas sold, the share of profits
increased.
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Notes: (Continued)

Fair value change of
contingent consideration/
loss on derecognition of
compensation receivable:

Impairment loss in respect of
goodwill/intangible assets/

property, plant and equipment:

Gain on bargain purchase on
acquisition of an associate:

Share-based payment expense:

Income tax (expense) credit:

The amount represented a fair
value gain on change of contingent
consideration receivable from Yongheng
Development Corporation Limited
("Yongheng Development”) as at 31
March 2013. The profit guarantee
was subsequently waived in 2014 and
upon the waiver become effective, the
amount was derecognised and resulting
a loss in profit or loss this year. The
amount is one-off and non-cash item.

Mainly impairment loss recognised
for our lottery agency business. As
loss continuing in our lottery agency
business, we performed an impairment
assessment in 2013 and considered that
the respective carrying amount of the
assets in lottery agency business exceed
its recoverable amount. Accordingly,
impairment loss was recognised during
year ended 31 March 2013.

It represented the excess of share of net
fair value of the assets, liabilities, and
contingent liabilities over the cost of
acquisition of associates during the year
ended 31 March 2013.

It represented the difference between
the fair value of unlisted warrants
issued and gross proceeds, as a share-
based payment in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2014. It is
one-off and non-cash expense.

As a result of impairment loss
recognised for the intangible asset in
lottery agency business, the deferred tax
liabilities associated with that tangible
asset was derecognised and credited as
income tax credit during the year ended
31 March 2013.
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Items
H

No. of projects
Piped gas
LPG
Lottery

Total no. of projects

No. of new connected customers
for the reporting period
Household (unit)

Commercial & industrial (unit)

Total no. of connected customers (unit)

Accumulated no. of connected customers
Household (unit)
Commercial & industrial (unit)

Total accumulated no. of
connected customers (unit)

Sales of piped gas (10,000 m?)

Household
Commercial & industrial

Total sales of piped gas

Sales of LPG (tons)

Number of lottery betting stores
Shenzhen

Guizhou Province

Total number of lottery betting stores

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3A3MBLEE
2013
Associates
and joint
The Group ventures
E-UNG|
K
AEE AELE
BEHE ()
EEMTIER 9 32
RILEHEE 5 15
YERER 4 -
EHEH 18 47
R H AT IE B B
AP
EBERAF (F) 24,525 84,833
IEERF (F) 430 390
EEEBEFEH(F) 24,955 85,223
ZHERRAPH
EBERAF (F) 211,580 433,095
IEERF (F) 3,193 1,255
ZHERRAP
“ag(p) 214773 434,350
EEMAHES
(B k)
ERAF 4,777 1,580
TE£RF 13,543 15,562
EEMRBEES 18,320 17,142
RIERHEEE (W) 50,684 44,825
VERTU#E
A 79 _
U - =
YERTU AR 79 =

65

109,358
820

110,178

644,675
4,448

649,123

6,357
29,105

35,462

95,509

79

79



Notes:

1. For details of new projects, please refer to “New projects during the
reporting period”.

2. Operation statistics are presented according to the entire interest of the
projects.

Piped gas business is our main business and source of income.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, an income of approximately
RMB448,105,000 was recorded from piped gas business, representing
a growth of RMB34,018,000 or 8.22% over last year, which accounted
for 53.82% (2013: 53.82%) of our annual revenue. Gross profit
margin maintained at around 25% to 27%.

During the reporting period, we have been actively conformed to the
trend of domestic energy industry and conscientiously implemented
the government’s policy, in order to proactively give impetus to the
development of our piped gas business. On the one hand, we focused
on its increase in sales and business development, ensured gas
supply to the existing customers, vigorously explored new connected
customers and boosted gas penetration rate in our existing projects. On
the other hand, we considered production safety as our lifeline of the
development. We solidly promoted the establishment of a management
system for production safety and fully commenced evaluation on safety,
thereby cultivating the awareness of production safety to the whole
process of our production and operation. During the year, Mian Zhu
Civigas Co., Ltd., Chongging Civigas Co., Ltd. and Xi'an Civigas Co.,
Ltd., being our subsidiaries, were honoured as Advanced Enterprise in
Production Safety ("Z & £ ESLHEENL") by the authorities of Sichuan,
Chongging and Xi‘an respectively.

1. HMEEBARR [MEHAMLER]-

2. EEBBRABZ2EESE-

BEMRES RN EZEEMEA TR - &
F2014F3R31HEFE EEMREBERK
A& ANRE448,105,00000 © B = F 1B 1A R
34,018,000705(8.22% * BB RBAMEHK M2 F
U A #)53.82% (20134 :53.82% ) » £ Fl| R 4
BHE25%E27% 2 -

AREHA ROBRIBEEANERTE REE
MBUTEEE - BERGHEEEEMREBHER
—HE OTEHENEM XHENER RERE
REAR YANERHMAFL THRSHEEER
MREXR-Z—TH HPRKESLE2EER SR
MERNEGR-LEHELZAETERRAR
FEHMARZEMETF BL2BBEFED
REERE22BRE-FR RANHME QRS
FRMBRERAF BEEFRMRABERAFLRAL
FRMREBRABDFIKEN)IE EET A%
M2 [RREEREEN | KRB -



During the year, income from gas connection construction contracts
was approximately RMB88,870,000, representing a growth of
RMB12,240,000 or 15.97% over last year. Income from gas connection
construction contracts represented approximately 19.83% (2013:
18.51%) of total income of piped gas business. In current year, there
was an addition of 146,262 units of household customers (of which
controlling interests accounted for 26,225 units) and an addition of
954 units of commercial & industrial customers (of which controlling
interests accounted for 520 units). As at the end of the reporting
period, there were an accumulated number of connected household
customers of 790,937 units (of which controlling interests accounted
for 237,805 units) and accumulated commercial & industrial customers
of 5,402 units (of which controlling interests accounted for 3,713
units), representing an increase of 22.69% and 21.45% respectively
over last year. A comparison of our accumulated number of connected
customers among 2012 to 2014 is shown in Graph 1 below.
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Graph 1: Accumulated number of connected units for the latest 3 years as at 31 March
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During the year, income from gas sales was approximately
RMB359,235,000, representing a growth of RMB21,778,000 or 6.45%
over last year. Income from gas sales represented approximately
80.17% (2013: 81.49%) of total income of piped gas business. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, our total piped gas sales exceeded
400 million cubic meters ("m3”) to 421.57 million m3? (of which
controlling interests accounted for 189.64 million m?), representing a
growth of 18.88% over last year. Among the total sales, 69.63 million
m3 (of which controlling interests accounted for 50.58 million m?)
were sold to the household customers, which represented a growth
of 9.53% over last year, and 351.94 million m3 (of which controlling
interests accounted for 139.06 million m3) were sold to the industrial
& commercial customers, which represented a growth of 20.92% over
last year. A comparison of our sales of piped gas among 2012 to 2014
is shown in Graph 2 below.
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Graph 2: Total sales of piped gas for the latest 3 years ended 31 March
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With growing urban population, continuous economic growth,
constant national measures to optimise and adjust the energy
consumption structure, and the implementation of air pollution
control measures in China, natural gas, as an efficient energy with
low carbon emission, will become unprecedentedly popular and enjoy
vast demand. Under such favourable background, we believe its gas
utilisation rate continue to rise.

Transportation, distribution and retail of LPG business recorded rapid
growth and has become a major component of our business. During
the year, we strived to expand the presence of its LPG business by
developing markets with huge potential including Xi‘an and Tianjin
while continuing to expanding its market in south-western China.
On the other hand, we have always been committed to the safety
management of our LPG business. During the year, we re-amended the
gas safety management system, reorganised our grading of incident,
refined our accountability system, established a safety inspection
and assessment system and further standardised the requirements of
safety management of project companies. Those amendments further
improved our safety management system, which provided solid basis
and scientific guidance to the safety management.

These measures will greatly promote the development of our LPG
business and pave the way for it to enhance management and core
competitiveness.
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, sales of LPG reached
approximately 146,740 tons (of which controlling interests occupied
53,352 tons) in total, representing an increase of 53.64% over
last year. Income from transportation distribution and retail of LPG
during the year was approximately RMB379,777,000, representing a
growth of RMB26,231,000 or 7.42% over last year and accounted
for approximately 45.61% (2013: 45.95%) of our total revenue. A
comparison of sales of LPG between 2012 to 2014 is shown in Graph 3
below.
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Graph 3: Sales of LPG for the latest 3 years ended 31 March
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We currently sell China Welfare Lottery in Shenzhen and Guizhou
Province, the PRC. It includes an instant lottery called “Keno Games
Lottery” which is exclusively available in Shenzhen. During the year, we
successfully expanded into Guizhou market where it set up 15 lottery
betting stores. Our lottery agency sales business generated revenue of
approximately RMB4,713,000 in the year, representing an increase of
RMB2,890,000, or 158.53%, over last year. Lottery agency business
represented approximately 0.57% of our total revenue (2013: 0.23%).
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Notwithstanding the significant increase in revenue over the
corresponding period last year, lottery agency business has yet to
contribute positive financial impact to us and its loss continued, which
was primarily attributable to (1) a series of necessary input to the
decorations, ancillary equipment and facilities, indoor and outdoor
promotions, safety control and employment of staff throughout
the process of site selection, construction and operation of lottery
betting stores, resulting in an increase in cost; (2) the fact that in
addition, affected by the real property market across the nation,
lottery betting stores are under a macro-environment that the rent
will increase continuously and there has been a trend of increase,
which will particularly affect our schedule of opening new lottery
betting stores. We are in the process of optimising its sales network
by increasing the number of lottery betting stores with strong people
flow and shutting down underperforming stores to improve its store
mix; and (3) diversifying lottery betting channels which have provided
more lottery betting channels to lottery buyers. Indeed, as the pace
of life accelerates, internet/mobile lottery betting has provided a more
convenient and faster way of lottery betting as compared to traditional
lottery betting stores. It has also broken the geographical restraints
in lottery betting, enabled lottery buyers from across China to realise
lottery betting on a collective basis, and reduced the time required for
travels to and back from lottery betting stores and colleting rewards.

The sales performance of the "Keno Games Lottery” was not
satisfactory since it launched. On 23 May 2014, the change of rules of
games of “Keno Games Lottery” was approved by relevant regulatory
authorities and it was newly rolled out. The upgraded “Keno Games
Lottery” will be sold in big betting stations and the sales of the first
batch “Keno Games Lottery” have two lottery betting stations. After
the rules were changed, the new “Keno Games Lottery” has higher
payout ratio which will reach 67%, and become a kind of lottery with
the highest payout ratio among all China welfare lotteries which are
currently sold in Shenzhen. Its play is simple and fun and people can
randomly choose one number from 1 to 22 totaling 22 numbers to
form a bet to place betting and also have various types of compound
betting. The new “Keno Games Lottery” with its high payout ratio,
simple, fun and high frequent characteristics, will provide the lottery
buyers in Shenzhen more fascinating and interesting experiences. By
taking this opportunity, we expect to get rid of the dilemmas of the
sluggish sales at present.
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We entered into a settlement deed with Yongheng Development in
relation to a profit guarantee on 8 April 2013 (as supplemented by
a supplemental settlement deed dated 16 May 2013) (collectively as
the “Settlement Deed"”). For details, please refer to the Company's
circular dated 8 July 2013. The Settlement Deed was approved at a
general meeting held on 24 July 2013. Pursuant to the Settlement
Deed, in the event that the 2013/14 valuation difference shall show
a positive sum, the escrow agent is not required to release any of the
Company’s 1,727,729,582 shares owned by Yongheng Development
(“Consideration Shares”) held in escrow by the escrow agent. In the
event that the 2013/14 valuation difference shall be zero or show a
negative sum, Yongheng Development and we shall jointly procure the
placing agent, on the best effort basis, to dispose of Consideration
Shares within six months after the date of the 2014 settlement
certificate at the then best price reasonably obtainable by the placing
agent (“2014 Placing Period”). The placing agent shall pay the net
proceeds from such sale to us promptly after completion of such sale.
Should the placing agent fail to place all of the Consideration Shares
during the 2014 Placing Period, the escrow agent shall release and
transfer the remaining Consideration Shares which are held in the
escrow of the escrow agent to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on the last day of the 2014 Placing Period (other than Yongheng
Development) on a pro-rata basis.

According to the 2014 valuation report prepared by the independent
valuer dated 30 April 2014, the 2014 valuation amounted to
RMB31,920,283 and the 2013/14 valuation difference showed a
negative sum of RMB33,746,818. The 2014 valuation was arrived at on
the basis of fair value using a discounted cashflow methodology and
asset based approach with the assumptions which, as advised by the
independent valuer, consistently applied as disclosed in the Circular.
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On 30 April 2014 (after trading hours), We, Yongheng Development
and Astrum Capital Management Limited (“Astrum”, as the Placing
Agent) entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which Astrum agreed, on a best effort basis, to place up
to 1,727,729,582 Consideration Shares to not fewer than six placees.
The placing price of HK$0.205 per Consideration Share (i) equals
to the closing price of HK$0.205 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange as at the date of the Placing Agreement; and (ii) represents
a premium of approximately 0.99% over the average of the closing
prices of HK$0.203 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
last five consecutive trading days immediately prior to and including
the date of the Placing Agreement. Due to recent market condition,
we were informed by the Placing Agent on 21 May 2014 that no
sufficient orders were received during the placing period. Accordingly,
we resolved not to proceed the placing and the Placing Agreement
was lapsed and became null and void. Subsequently up to the date of
this annual report, we are continuously seeking placing opportunity to
placees within the 2014 Placing Period.

We expect that the placing may have a material impact on the
amounts presented in our Group’s financial statements. However, we
are currently unable to quantify the exact financial impact and it is
impracticable to provide a reasonable estimation of that impact.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, we set up a total of six (6)
piped gas projects and nine (9) LPG projects. As at 31 March 2014,
we managed a total of 80 projects in China. These new projects are
located in regions with developed industrial and commercial sectors
and promising prospects, which can help further expand the scale of
its gas sales operation. In addition, the new projects are mostly in close
proximity to its existing projects, which enables us to make full use of
its scale advantage, generate synergies and reduce operating costs.
Some other projects are located in new markets where we had no
presence earlier, which enables us to further expand its sales coverage
and capture market share. In the face of energy consumption structure
adjustment and the advancement of urbanisation and industrialisation
in China, we expect that there will be more opportunities for us to set
up new projects in the future.
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, our operating business
realised a gross profit of approximately RMB169,077,000 (2013:
RMB150,436,000) in total, representing an increase of 12.39% as
compared with last year. The overall gross profit margin was 20.31%
(2013: 19.55%).

Our consolidated financial and liquidity position remained robust.
As at 31 March 2014, our net current assets and current ratio were
approximately RMB139,893,000 (2013: RMB238,013,000) and 1.57
(2013: 2.20), respectively. As at 31 March 2014, our total assets
was approximately RMB1,554,379,000 (2013: RMB1,365,849,000),
and current liabilities, non-current liabilities, equity attributable to
owners of the Company and non-controlling interests amounted
to approximately 243,870,000 (2013: RMB199,004,000),
RMB27,719,000 (2013: RMB25,213,000), RMB1,168,605,000 (2013:
RMB1,082,446,000) and RMB114,185,000 (2013: RMB59,186,000)
respectively.

As at 31 March 2014, our cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB274,099,000 (2013: RMB258,520,000), and the
total borrowings amounted to approximately RMB56,528,000 (2013:
RMB50,094,000). The debt-to-capitalisation ratio, representing the
ratio of total borrowings to borrowings and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, was 4.61% (2013: 4.42%).

Operating cash flow before movements in working capital amounted
to approximately RMB68,606,000, representing an increase of 21.12%
over last year. The increase is due to the increase in our revenue.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to approximately
RMB97,889,000, representing an increase of 61.29% over last year.
Such increase is due to the increase in our capital investment in gas
supply facilities.

Net cash generated from financing activities of approximately
RMB4,386,000, representing an increase of 107.87% over last year.
Such increase is due to the proceeds from the issue of unlisted warrants
during the year.
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As at 31 March 2014, our total borrowings were RMB56,528,000
(2013: RMB50,094,000), which mainly comprised domestic bank
borrowings denominated in Renminbi of the project companies
in the PRC and amount due to a former director/director. The
borrowings, which carried floating interest rates, were applied
to gas pipelines construction, as general working capital and for
operating expenses. Apart from the borrowings with an amount
equivalent to RMB12,000,000 (2013: RMB15,000,000) which were
secured by certain assets with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB9,854,000 (2013: RMB15,281,000), others were unsecured. Short-
term borrowings amounted to approximately RMB33,397,000 (2013:
RMB29,413,000), while others were long-term borrowings due after
one year. Details of the capital and other commitments and pledge
of assets are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the financial statements
respectively.

Our long-term capital comprised equity attributable to owners of the
Company and borrowings, which was confirmed by the sound debt-to-
capitalisation ratio stated in the section headed “Liquidity and capital
resources” above.

On 8 April 2013, we and Ping Da Development Limited (“Ping Da”,
a company wholly-owned by Dr. Mo Shikang, our executive director
and the Chairman) entered into the warrants subscription agreement
pursuant to which we have conditionally agreed to issue and allot
to Ping Da, and Ping Da has conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
an aggregate of 1,135,000,000 warrants conferring the rights to
subscribe for an aggregate of 1,135,000,000 subscription shares at
the initial subscription price of HK$0.205 per subscription share. The
warrants issue price is HK$0.01 per warrant and the gross proceeds
from the warrants subscription of HK$11,350,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB9,021,000) was paid by Ping Da in cash upon
completion of warrant subscription agreement. Further details of the
warrants subscription agreement were set out in the our circular dated
8 July 2013. The warrants subscription agreement was approved by
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on 24
July 2013.
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No warrants were exercised during the year ended 31 March 2014. As
at 31 March 2014, there were 1,135,000,000 outstanding warrants.
Based on our existing capital structure, full exercise of these warrants
will result in the issue of additional 1,135,000,000 shares of HK$0.205
each.

On 30 April 2014 (after trading hours), We, Yongheng Development
and Astrum entered into the Placing Agreement pursuant to which
Astrum agreed, on a best effort basis, to place up to 1,727,729,582
Consideration Shares to not fewer than six placees. The placing price
of HK$0.205 per Consideration Share (i) equals to the closing price of
HK$0.205 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange as at the date of
the Placing Agreement; and (ii) represents a premium of approximately
0.99% over the average of the closing prices of HK$0.203 per share as
qguoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five consecutive trading days
immediately prior to and including the date of the Placing Agreement.
Due to recent market condition, we were informed on 21 May 2014
that no sufficient orders were received during the placing period.
Accordingly, we resolved not to proceed the placing and the Placing
Agreement was lapsed and became null and void.

We have adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. We strive to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, we closely
monitors our liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of our assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.
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As all of our operations are in China and substantially all of its revenues
and expenses are denominated in Renminbi, there were no significant
foreign exchange risks in its operation. We currently do not have
foreign currency hedging policy but will monitor the market trends
of exchange rates closely and adopt appropriate measures when
necessary.

As at 31 March 2014, our capital and other commitments amounted to
approximately RMB227,626,000, mainly attributable to running district
gas pipelines construction, building offices, prepaid lease payment and
capital injection with several third parties for set up a new company
to be engaged in the provision of public assistance insurance, personal
medical insurance, employment insurance and specific personal
insurance to the disabled in China. Please refer to note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

As at 31 March 2014, we had no material contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2014, we had approximately 1,300 employees, most of
them were stationed in China. The employees’ salaries are determined
with reference to their duties and responsibilities with the Group,
business performance, profitability and market conditions. In addition
to pension funds, individual employees may be granted discretionary
bonus and share options as rewards for their outstanding performance.

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or repurchased any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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The placing is detailed in the section headed (“Fund raising activities”)
above.

On 21 May 2014, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Tianjin Civigas
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Civigas”) entered into equity transfer
agreements with independent third parties, pursuant to which,
Tianjin Civigas acquired 100% equity interest of Tianjin Binhai New
District Dagong Anbao Gas Co., Ltd. (“Dagong Anbao”) at a total
consideration of RMB8,200,000. Dagong Anbao is principally engaged
in the wholesale and retail LPG business in Tianjin.

On 22 May 2014, Tianjin Civigas entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which, Tianjin
Civigas acquired 100% equity interest of Tianjin Baoyuan Taida Gas
Co., Ltd. ("Baoyuan Taida”) at a total consideration RMB2,640,000.
Baoyuan Taida is principally engaged in the wholesale and retail
business LPG in Tianjin.

The acquisitions of Dagong Anbao and Baoyuan Taida will support the
further expansion of our influence and visibility in Tianjin LPG market.
It will be an important step in starting our huge and strong business
in Tianjin market. The acquisition prompted us to grab more market
share.
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In 2014, global economic recovery is expected to gradually accelerate
amid fluctuations, and developed economies will once again become
the main force driving the world’s economic growth, while emerging
and developing countries will maintain steady economic growth. China
is at a stage of industrialisation, urbanisation, consumption structure
upgrade and rapid growth of income, and some new drivers of
economic growth are coming into being, with economic fundamentals
remaining positive. Encouraging domestic and overseas economic
growth momentum has built a favourable external environment and
internal drivers for the development of the gas industry.

With China’s economic growth, social developments and deepening
reforms, as well as people’s placing increasingly higher importance
to life quality, unprecedented golden opportunities for natural gas
development have arisen. On one hand, as China’s industrialisation
and new-type of urbanisation continue to progress, energy resources
consumption will keep growing. On the other hand, serious
environment pollution has had a material adverse effect on the
environment. In particular, the widespread, prolonged and frequent
haze weather since the winter of 2013 has drawn great attention
to environment pollution. Environment pollution control, maintain
air quality and achieve sustainable development through green low-
carbon emission has become a hot topic across all walks of the society.
A consensus is that the key to addressing energy consumption and
environment issues is clean, high-quality natural gas resources. To this
end, the Chinese government has introduced a series of policies. The
Twelfth Five-Year Plan for Energy Development (B&REERE"+ —H "R
£1) issued in January 2013 states that China’s aim is to increase the
percentage of natural gas consumption to primary energy consumption
to 7.5% and reduce the percentage of coal consumption to 65%.
The Action Plan for Air Pollution Prevention (KX&5 %7 877851 &),
introduced in September 2013, requires the government to increase
efforts of comprehensive air pollution control for industrial enterprises,
thoroughly control small coal-fired boilers, accelerate the use of
centralised heating and “coal-to-gas” and “coal-to-electricity” upgrade
projects, adjust and optimise industrial structure to promote industrial
transformation and upgrade, strictly control new production capacity
of industries with high energy consumption and high pollution and
step up the phasing out of obsolete capacity, accelerate the utilisation
and substitution of clean energy, and increase supply of natural gas,
substitute natural gas and coalbed methane, and by 2015 new natural
gas trunk pipeline transportation capacity shall reach 150 billion m?3,
covering Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River
Delta. The State Council also entered into responsibility contracts
with the governments of all provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities which provides for detailed targets and responsibilities
for local governments and enterprises. The performance of
environment pollution control tasks has become an important criterion
for comprehensive assessment of government leadership and leading
cadres.
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We see the government’s determination and firm standing to control
environment pollution and promote the use of natural gas from the
aforesaid policies. It will adapt to the situation, respond to calls of
the government and carefully implement government policies. It will
secure its gas utilisation quota, accelerate “coal-to-gas” upgrade in its
markets, increase its efforts to promote the utilisation of clean energy,
explore methods to improve the gas utilisation ratio in its markets, and
raise the share of natural gas in energy consumption. With favourable
national policies and its continuous efforts, we believe its piped gas will
continue to record steady growth and bring considerable returns to all
stakeholders including shareholders.

The national apparent consumption rate of LPG appears a trend of
continuous growth. In 2013, the national demand of LPG reached
approximately 25.45 million tons, representing an increase of
approximately 3.2% as compared to 2012. The national production
was approximately 22.65 million tons, representing an increase of
approximately 0.13% as compared to last year. Net import in 2013
reached approximately 2.9505 million tons, representing a more
significant growth compared with 2012.

There are great prospects for the LPG market. On one hand, China's
rapid economic growth, improving living standards of people,
increasingly prominent environment problems and growing awareness
of environment protection among the people have given impetus to the
domestic demand for LPG. On the other hand, natural gas cannot fully
replace LPG, despite the impact of natural gas development on the LPG
market. In regions where there is no supply of natural gas or there are
difficulties in or huge investment is required for laying pipelines to build
a natural gas pipeline network, there will still be demand for LPG.
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In March 2014, "National Guidelines for Developing a New Type
of Urbanisation (2014-2020)" (215 1 5! 4 #{L 53 #1(2014-2020
F)) (the “Guidelines”) was formally promulgated. The Guidelines
specifically state that the principle of “building ecological civilisation
and achieving green low-carbon emission” (4 B&3CER 4% &8 K H%) shall
be adhered to by way of fully integrating the concepts of building
ecological civilisation into the urbanisation process, putting great
efforts into promoting green development, circular development and
low-carbon emission development, saving and realising intensive use of
resources including land, water and energy, strengthening environment
protection and ecological restoration, reducing interruptions and
harms to the nature, and facilitating the forming of green low-carbon
emission production and life style and city construction and operation
model. With growing rural population relocating to towns and cities,
the demand for clean energy will record fast growth and LPG will also
benefit from the urbanisation trend.

In the face of such a once-in-a-lifetime historic opportunity, we shall
fully understand that retail of LPG is the core of its LPG business and
also the key factor affecting the competitiveness and profitability in the
LPG market, and shall accelerate the construction of its retail network.
We shall take advantage of the central government’'s promotion of
use of clean energy to seek opportunities to expand into new markets
while actively increasing its shares in the existing markets.
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According to statistics of the Ministry of Finance, lottery sales in China
amounted to approximately RMB309.3 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately RMB47.8 billion, or approximately
18.3%. In January 2013, the Administrative Measures for Lottery
Issuance and Sales (F2ZE #1785 E B IEIE) were issued, specifically
providing for the first time that Internet is a lottery sales channel,
which has provided the policy basis for the development of Internet
lottery sales and enhanced investors’ confidence in the development
of Internet lottery sales. Internet lottery sales grew at a much higher
rate than that of total lottery sales in China, and the growth and
market share of Internet lottery sales increased each year. With
more widespread connection to the Internet, especially the rapid
development of the mobile Internet, there will be great opportunities
for the rapid growth of Internet lottery sales, which will undoubtedly
bring strong support to the steady growth of lottery sales in China.

Looking ahead, we will continue to develop gas business while

expanding the LPG market at a modest pace in order to maximise the
investment returns for the shareholders and investors as a whole.

Mr. Jin Song
Managing Director and Executive Director

Beijing, 27 June 2014
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Dr. Mo Shikang

Chairman of the Board

Aged 56

Director since 30 April 2004

Chairman since 1 August 2013

holds entirely interests in Ping Da Development Limited, a substantial
shareholder of our Company, details of which be disclosed in the
Report of the Directors under this annual report

o chairman of Nomination Committee

o member of Remuneration Committee

o chairman of the board of Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of our Company

o director of certain principal subsidiaries of our Group

o Bachelor degree in Sciences from Tianjin Education University, the
PRC

o Master degree in Economics from Tianjin University of Finance
and Economics, the PRC

o Doctor degree in Economic from Nankai University, the PRC

o part-time professor of the Faculty of Statistics of People’s
University of China

o supervising tutor of Master degree students of the Faculty of
Statistics of People’s University of China

o has substantial experiences in the development and management
of natural gas projects in the PRC
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Mr. Zhang Hesheng

Deputy Chairman of the Board

Aged 60
Director and Deputy Chairman
since 21 March 2005

o member of Remuneration Committee
o director of a subsidiary of our Group

o MBA degree from the La Trobe University, the Australia

o joined the initial financial securities industry in the PRC in late
1980s

o has been acted as senior operation officer in various securities
companies including Wanguo Holdings Limited, Guotai Securities
Company Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited,
and engaged in the provision of services to securities and
financial investment; securities brokerages; investment banking;
financial research and analysis

o has extensive experiences in financial and capital markets
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Mr. Jin Song

Managing Director

Aged 43
Director since 11 April 2005
Managing Director since 31 December 2007

o director and president of Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of our Company
o director of certain principal subsidiaries of our Group

o MBA degree from Oklahoma City University, the United States

o has been engaged by Shenzhen Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. for
marketing and project management

o has worked for years in investment banking business with
Guangzhou Security Company Limited and Huatai Securities Co.,
Ltd.

o has substantial experiences in investment banking as well as
merger and acquisition of gas enterprises in the PRC
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Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus

Aged 50
Director since 1 December 2008
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director of certain subsidiaries of our Group

Master degree in Business Administration from the University of
Hong Kong

fellow practising member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (FCPA (Practising))

fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (FCCA)

associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (ACS)

associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (ACIS)

independent non-executive director of the following companies

listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:

> China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 01269)

> Eyang Holdings (Group) Co. Limited (stock code: 00117)

> Flyke International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01998)

> Huayu Expressway Group Ltd. (stock code: 01823)
independent non-executive director of the following companies in
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange:

> EDS Wellness Holdings Limited (stock code: 08176)

> Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (stock code: 08145)

over 25 years of professional experiences in auditing, accounting
and financial management for both private and listed
corporations
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Dr. Liu Junmin

Aged 64
Director since 11 April 2005
Term of office: 3 September 2013 to 2 September 2016

. member of Audit Committee
° member of Nomination Committee
. member of Remuneration Committee

o Bachelor degree, Master degree and PhD degree in Economics
from Nankai University, the PRC

o professor of the School of Economics, Nankai University, the PRC

o an officer of the Virtual Economics and Management Research
Center of Nankai University, the PRC

o independent director of China-Baoding Tianwei Yingli New
Energy Resources Co., Limited

o Sun Yefang Economics Prize
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Prof. Zhao Yanyun

Aged 57
Director since 24 July 2013
Term of office: 3 September 2013 to 2 September 2016

. member of Audit Committee
° member of Nomination Committee
° member of Remuneration Committee

o professor of School of Statistics, Renmin University of China

° a doctoral tutor of School of Statistics, Renmin University of
China

o officer of the China Research Center for Competitiveness and
Evaluation in Renmin University of China and a doctoral tutor

o part-time tutor in the following PRC universities:
Anhui University

Anhui University of Finance and Economics
Beijing University of Technology

Hebei University

Henan University of Economics and Law
Lanzhou University of Finance and Economics
Shandong University of Finance and Economics
Shanxi University of Finance & Economics
Shijiazhuang University of Economics
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o winner of the Government of the State Council Special
Contribution Expert Government Allowance, the PRC

o the century talent of Ministry of Education, the PRC

o national candidate of the Ministry of Personnel New Century
Hundred Thousand Talents Project, the PRC

o candidate of the Beijing Hundred Project, the PRC
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Mr. Sin Ka Man

Aged 47
Director since 23 December 2006
Term of office: 5 September 2012 to 4 September 2015

. chairman of Audit Committee
. member of Nomination Committee
. chairman of Remuneration Committee

o Bachelor degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong

o Master degree in Finance from the University of Strathclyde, the
United Kingdom

° Master degree in accounting from Curtin University of
Technology, the Australia

o associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA)

o fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (FCCA)

o certified practising accountant of the CPA in the Australia

o vice-president of Huayu Expressway Group Limited (stock code:
01823) and is responsible for the accounting and financial
management

o independent non-executive director of the following companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
> Fornton Group Limited (stock code: 01152)

> PNG Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 00221)
> Sino Haijing Holdings Limited (stock code: 01106)

> Xtep International Holdings Limited (stock code: 01368)
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o resigned independent non-executive director of Ground
Properties Company Limited (formerly known as China Motion
Telecom International Limited, stock code: 00989) on 29
November 2013

o has over 20 years of professional experiences in auditing,
accounting and financial management for both private and listed
corporations

Save as disclosed above, none of director of the Company has been
appointed for a specific term with our Company but all of them are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in the annual general
meeting in accordance with the provision of our Company’s Bye-laws
and the Listing Rules.
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The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) are pleased to present
their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the sales and distribution of natural gas and
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") including the provision of piped gas, transportation,
distribution and retail of LPG and lottery agency. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report respectively.

Details of the movement in the share capital, share options and the
warrants of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2014 are set
out in notes 33 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report respectively.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report respectively.
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As at 31 March 2014, the Company did not have any distributable
reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers taken
together accounted for 6.30% and 22.35% of the Group’'s total
turnover for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate purchase
attributable to the Group's largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 26.55% and 73.55% of the
Group’s total purchase for the year, respectively.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the said
top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Dr. Mo Shikang' (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jin Song (Managing Director)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus

Mr. Xu Ruixin?

Mr. Yang Songsheng?

Mr. Yeung Paak Ching?

Dr. Liu Junmin
Prof. Zhao Yanyun*
Mr. Sin Ka Man
Mr. Tan Qinglian?
Mr. Li Jialin?

Notes:

Re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman on 1 August 2013.
Retired on 3 September 2013.

Resigned on 1 August 2013.

Appointed on 24 July 2013.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 32 to page
39 of this annual report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years but subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 of the Company and pursuant to
paragraph A4.2 of the Code on Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Report annexed as Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Messrs.
Jin Song, Chu Kin Wang Peleus and Sin Ka Man will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting but, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant
to the rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the Board and the
Nomination Committee considered all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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As at 31 March 2014, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the "“Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

MR2014F3 7318 1BIEFEFH KB E KA F35215
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Number of Percentage
underlying of aggregate
shares held interests to
Number of shares under equity total number
RHBE derivatives of shares
Personal (Note 2) in issue *
interests RERAKRTE BRAE
(Note 1) Family Corporate IEBEZ HERITRA
fAA#R interests interests  HERDHE Total #EZEDL*
Name of Director EE#E (FE&E1) EQ T 35 ATER (FFzE2) “ay %
Dr. Mo Shikang RitfRiEL 427,841,375 - - 1,135,000,000 1,562,841,375 26.90
("Dr. Mo") ([BEL])
Mr. Zhang Hesheng SR £ 4 227,138,793 - - - 227,138,793 3.91
Mr. Chu Kin Wang ~ REZTHE - 9,840,000 - - 9,840,000 0.17

Peleus



Notes:
1. This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owner.

2. This represents interest legally and beneficially held by Dr. Mo through
Ping Da Development Limited (“Ping Da”) with respect to 1,135,000,000
warrants issued by the Company to Ping Da pursuant to the warrants
subscription agreement dated 8 April 2013 (“Warrants Subscription
Agreement”), details of which are disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 8 July 2013.

* The percentage has been adjusted (if any) based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2014 (i.e. 5,809,954,136
shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated
Corporations which had been entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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As at 31 March 2014, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the share option scheme (defined
under section headed “Share Option” below) for the Directors to
subscribe the shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code is set out in the section headed “Share Option” under
Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 March 2014, the interests of those persons (other than the
Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Number of
underlying
ordinary
shares held Approximate
under equity  percentage of
derivatives the issued
REBRAFTE share capital*
Nature of Number of IAfBEZ ke
Name Capacity Interest shares held EEEER BITRA
£ 80} ERMtE HERGEHE gy 4= BABED >
Yongheng Development Beneficial owner Corporate 1,727,729,582' = 29.74%
Corporation Limited ExnfEBA NS L
("Yongheng Development”)
KEBERERADA]
(xiB#ERE])
Mr. Yang Songsheng Interests in controlled Corporate 1,727,729,582' = 29.74%
e corporation UNG] L
REEE 2w
Mr. Yeung Paak Ching Interests in controlled Corporate 1,727,729,582" = 29.74%
BRBELE corporation N (8]
REEEE 2 #amw
Beneficial owner Personal interest 600,000? - 0.01%
EnERA A A#E (L
1,728,329,582 - 29.75%
Ping Da Beneficial owner Corporate = 1,135,000,000° 19.54%
Yz ExEAA NGl (L)

(L) = long positiontf &



Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Yongheng Development is legally,
beneficially and equally owned by Mr. Yang Songsheng and Mr. Yeung
Paak Ching. They are brothers and directors of Yongheng Development
and directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group. On 8 April 2013, the
Company and Yongheng Development entered into a settlement deed (as
supplemented by a supplemental settlement deed dated 16 May 2013
(collectively refered to as the “Settlement Deed")), details of which are
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 8 July 2013. The entire
1,727,729,582 shares are currently held and dealt with by the escrow
agent in accordance with the settlement arrangement as stipulated in the
Settlement Deed.

2. This represents interests held by Mr. Yeung Paak Ching as beneficial
owner.

3. This represents interests legally and beneficially held by Dr. Mo through
Ping Da with respect to 1,135,000,000 warrants issued by the Company
to Ping Da pursuant to the Warrants Subscription Agreement, details of
which are disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 8 July 2013.

* The percentage has been adjusted (if any) based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2014 (i.e. 5,809,954,136
shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has any
other conflict of interests with the Group.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
as at the date of this annual report and within the knowledge of
the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

On 3 October 2006, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
On 27 September 2007 and 29 August 2011, the shareholders of
the Company approved resolutions for refreshment of 10% limit on
the grant of options under the Share Option Scheme, respectively.
On 28 August 2008, the shareholders of the Company approved
the resolution for the amendments to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, details of which may refer to the circular of the Company
dated 31 July 2008.

As at 31 March 2014 and the date of this annual report, nil share
option was outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme:
Purpose Provide incentives to the eligible persons
to contribute to the Group, to enable
the Group to recruit and retain quality
employees to serve the Group on a long-
term basis and to attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group.

Participants Eligible person include any executive,
employee (whether full-time or part-
time), Director (including non-executive
director and independent non-executive
director), consultant, adviser, partner,
joint-venture partner, service provider,
customer and/or agent of the Company or
any of its subsidiary or any person, who
in the absolute discretion of the Board,
has contributed or may contribute to
the Group at the time when an option is
granted to such person (Note).
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Price of Shares

Total number of shares

available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued share
capital that it
represents as at the
date of this annual
report

Determined by the Board and shall at least
be the highest of:

(a)

the nominal value of the share of
the Company;

the closing price of the share of
the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer, which must be
a trading day; and

the average closing price of
the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

408,222,455 shares, being approximately
7.03% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Maximum entitlement
of each participant

Period within which
the securities must be
taken up under the
option

Minimum period for
which an option must
be held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance

Period within which
calls/loans must be
made/repaid

Remaining life of the
scheme

Not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue in any 12-month period.

Subject to the discretion by the Board
(Note).

Not applicable (Note).

No amount is payable on acceptance of an
offer.

Not applicable.

The scheme will be valid and effective until
5 October 2016, after which no further
options will be granted, but in all other
respects the provisions of this scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in
respect of any option granted prior to the
termination of this scheme and any such
option shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

Note: This term has been revised in the 2008 annual general meeting.
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Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the Share BiE ETRRIE17.071&  RELE2014F3 A318 1L
Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 March 2014 are listed below  FERBERETZNFE 2 BRE 2 BB

in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: N
During the year
R
Lapsed*/ Exercise Exercise
Category Date of grant As ati®  Reclassification cancelled As atfd price’ period®
£ BHAHg 01.04.2013 ENE AR /E# 31.03.2014 ke s
HKS
BET
Directors
B
Dr. Mo 29.11.2010°3 750,000 = (750,000) = 0.282
2@t
Mr. Zhang Hesheng 29.11.2010° 7,500,000 - (7,500,000) - 0.282
RAELE
Mr. Jin Song 29.11.2010° 7,500,000 = (7,500,000) = 0.282
il
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus 12.04.20102 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - 0.385 I
RRERE
29.11.2010°3 7,000,000 = (7,000,000) = 0.282
9,000,000 - (9,000,000) -
Dr. Liu Junmin 29.11.2010° 2,700,000 - (2,700,000) - 0.282
AHERET
Mr. Sin Ka Man 29.11.2010° 2,700,000 = (2,700,000) = 0.282

ERERLE



Category
£5

Mr. Yang Songsheng* (resigned)
BRERLE(ERE)

Mr. Yeung Paak Ching* (resigned)
BREBAE(ERE)

Continuous Contracts Employee

HEANNESR

Consultants

BB

Agents
RE

Date of grant
RHAH

29.11.2010°

29.11.2010°

Subtotal
it

12.04.2010 2

29.11.2010°

Subtotal
it

12.04.2010 2

29.11.2010°

Subtotal
Nt

29.11.2010°

Subtotal
Nt

As athh
01.04.2013

7,500,000

5,000,000

42,650,000

2,000,000

72,000,000

74,000,000

23,000,000

34,700,000

57,700,000

18,250,000

18,250,000

During the year
£R
Lapsed*/
Reclassification cancelled

ENE AR /E#

(7,500,000) -

(5,000,000) =

(12,500,000) (30,150,000)

= (2,000,000)

12,500,000 (84,500,000)

12,500,000 (86,500,000)

= (23,000,000)

= (34,700,000)

- (57,700,000)

- (18,250,000)

= (18,250,000)

As ati
31.03.2014

Exercise
price'
(i
HKS
BT
0.282

0.282

0.385

0.282

0.385

0.282

0.282

Exercise
period®

TR



£R

Category Date of grant Asat®  Reclassification
£Hl RL B 01.04.2013 ERE
Advisors& # A 29.11.2010°3 9,000,000 -
Subtotal 9,000,000 -

it
Total 201,600,000 -

&t

Notes:

During the year

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

The share option is vested immediately on the date of acceptance and
the closing price of the shares immediately the date on which the options
were granted was HK$0.395.

The share option is vested immediately on the date of acceptance and
the closing price of the shares immediately the date on which the options
were granted was HK$0.290.

Those options were held by Mr. Yang Songsheng and Mr. Yeung Paak
Ching, they resigned as Directors, both with effect on 1 August 2013.
They remain as directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group, therefore
these option be re-classified from Director’s category to Continuous
Contracts Employee’s Category.

Exercise Period:

I: From 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2013 (both days
inclusive).

I From 12 April 2010 to 11 April 2013 (both days inclusive).

Lapsed*/ Exercise Exercise
cancelled As atfd price' period®
KM/ 31.03.2014 T s
HK$
ik
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The pension schemes of the Group are primary in form of contributions
to Hong Kong’'s Mandatory Provident Fund and the PRC statutory
public welfare fund respectively. Details of which are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statement.

1. On 8 April 2013, the Company and Ping Da, as subscriber,
entered into the Warrants Subscription Agreement in relation
to subscription by Ping Da from the Company an aggregate
of 1,135,000,000 unlisted warrants conferring the rights to
subscribe for an aggregate of 1,135,000,000 shares of the
Company (the “Share(s)”) at the initial subscription price of
HK$0.205 per Share during a period of 36 months commencing
from 31 July 2013 to 30 June 2016 in accordance with the terms
of the Subscription Agreement (“Warrant”). The Warrant issue
price is HK$0.01 per Warrant, details of which were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 8 July 2013.

2. On 8 April 2013, the Company and Yongheng Development,
as the Vendor, entered into the Settlement Deed in relation to
among others,

(@) the security created by a share charge executed by
Yongheng Development in favour of the Company pursuant
to which Yongheng Development had created a first fixed
charge over the 297,654,321 Shares registered in the name
of and beneficially owned by Yongheng Development, in
favour of the Company, which was discharged and released
in the manner provided in the release that is the deed of
release (the “Release”) executed by the Company in favour
of Yongheng Development;

(b)  the profit guarantee was waived by the Company that
was made by the Yongheng Development in favour of the
Company that the net profits of the Grand Destiny Group
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively refered to as “Target
Group”) shown in the audited consolidated financial
statement of the Target Group for the period from 1
September 2011 to 31 March 2013 should not be less than
RMB60,000,000 (the “Profit Guarantee”) in the manner
provided in the Release;
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in the event that the 2013/14 valuation difference shall
show a positive sum, the escrow agent is not required to
release any of the Company’s 1,727,729,582 Shares owned
by Yongheng (“Consideration Shares”) held in escrow by
the escrow agent. In the event that the 2013/14 valuation
difference shall be zero or show a negative sum, Yongheng
Development and the Company shall jointly procure a
placing agent, on the best effort basis, to dispose of
Consideration Shares within six months after the date of
the 2014 settlement certificate (the “2014 Placing Period”)
at the then best price reasonably obtainable by the placing
agent. The placing agent shall pay the net proceeds from
such sale to the Company promptly after completion of
such sale. Should the placing agent fail to place all of
the Consideration Shares during the 2014 Placing Period,
the escrow agent shall release and transfer the remaining
Consideration Shares which are held in the escrow of the
escrow agent to Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on the last day of the 2014 Placing Period (other
than Yongheng Development) on a pro-rata basis;

Yongheng Development and the Company have jointly
appointed an escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) to hold
and deal with the Consideration Shares in accordance
with the terms of an escrow letter executed by Yongheng
Development, the Company and the Escrow Agent;

According to the 2014 valuation report prepared
by the independent valuer dated 30 April 2014, the
2014 valuation amounted to RMB31,920,283 and the
2013/14 valuation difference showed a negative sum of
RMB33,746,818; and
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(f)  On 30 April 2014 (after trading hours), the Company,
Yongheng Development and Astrum Capital Management
Limited (“Astrum”, as the Placing Agent) entered into the
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) pursuant to
which Astrum agreed, on a best effort basis, to place up to
1,727,729,582 Consideration Shares to not fewer than six
placees. The placing price of HK$0.205 per Consideration
Share. Due to recent market condition, the Company were
informed by the Placing Agent on 21 May 2014 that no
sufficient orders were received during the placing period
of 21 days. Accordingly, the Company resolved not to
proceed the placing and the Placing Agreement was lapsed
and became null and void. Subsequently up to the date of
this annual report, the Company are still seeking placing
opportunity to placees within the 2014 Placing Period.

Ping Da is wholly-owned by Dr. Mo, the Chairman and an executive
Director holding approximately 7.38% shareholding in the Company as
at 31 March 2013, is regarded as a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Yongheng Development is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
by virtue of its interests in the Company, is regarded as connected
person.

The transactions listed above constituted connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, independent
shareholders’ approval were obtained in the special general meeting of
the Company held on 24 July 2013.
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1. On 22 May 2013, Xi‘an Civigas Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Civigas")
entered into a natural gas supply agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Shaanxi Natural
Gas") in relation to purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi Natural
Gas by Xi‘an Civigas for a term commencing from 30 June 2013
until 31 December 2013. The transaction under the Agreement
will not exceed the volume of 35,000,000 m? and the amount of
RMB58,150,000, details of which were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 8 July 2013.

2. On 12 November 2013, Xi‘an Civigas entered into another
natural gas supply agreement (the “2nd Agreement”) with
Shaanxi Natural Gas in relation to the further purchase of natural
gas from Shaanxi Natural Gas for a period of three years from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual cap for the
transactions for each of the three years ending 31 December
2014, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 under the
2nd Agreement will be RMB121,603,000, RMB140,015,000 and
RMB162,421,000 respectively, details of which were disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.

Shaanxi Natural Gas is a shareholder of Xi'an Civigas (being a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Group) holding 40% equity interests in Xi'an
Civigas, by virtue of its interests in Xi‘an Civigas, is regarded as a
connected person of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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The transactions listed above constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
independent shareholders’ approval were obtained in the special
general meetings of the Company held on 24 July 2013 and 23
December 2013, respectively,

The aggregate amounts of each of the abovementioned continuing
connected transactions were within the maximum aggregate value as
stated in the respective agreements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Pursuant to rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions as
disclosed by the Group in the annual report in accordance with Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
connected and continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these transactions entered into by the Group were:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on arm’s length basis, on normal commercial terms and on terms
that are fair and reasonable as far as the shareholders of the
Company are concerned; and

(¢) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no transactions which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 37 to
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

The Board adopted the Model Code, amended from time to time. All
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2014.

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of Directors of the Company since the date of Company’s
2013 Interim Report is as follows:

Mr. Sin Ka Man, being an independent non-executive Director of our
Company, resigned on 29 November 2013 as an independent non-
executive director of Ground Properties Company Limited (Stock code:
00989).

On 17 October 2013 Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was
appointed as the new auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy
arising from the resignation of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
("SHINEWING") and to hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. SHINEWING
has been engaged as auditor of the Company for almost 7 years (the
date of appointment was 3 November 2006). The Board considered
the principle of maintaining good corporate governance and therefore
resolved to seek for change of auditor.

A resolution for the appointment of Deloitte as auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Jin Song
Managing and Executive Director

Beijing, 27 June 2014
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The Company has committed to perform a high standard of corporate
governance practices in enhancing the confidence of shareholders,
investors, employees, creditors and business partners and also
the growth of its business. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and the code provisions (the
"Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report, amended from time to time, (the "CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”). As far as the CG Code is concerned,
during the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
complies with all aspect of the Code Provisions.

The directors of the Company (the "Director(s)”) acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as a going
concern basis in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements required by the Listing
Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amended from time
to time. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The board of Directors (the "Board”) has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
amended from time to time (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

Specific respectively enquiry has been made to all the Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during the
year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this annual
report, they all confirmed in writing that they have fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year and up to the date of this annual report.
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In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of the
Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees in
respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Such
relevant employees shall abide by the provisions of the Model
Code. Besides, during the year the Company has adopted internal
control policy in relation to the disclosure of inside information of
the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code and/or the
internal control policy by such relevant employees was noted by
the Company.

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Company and to the exercising of independent. Other than
Mr. Yang Songsheng and Mr. Yeung Paak Ching are brothers,
none of the members of the Board is related to one another.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Mo Shikang' (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jin Song (Managing Director)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus

Mr. Xu Ruixin?

Mr. Yang Songsheng?

Mr. Yeung Paak Ching?

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Liu Junmin

Prof. Zhao Yanyun*

Mr. Sin Ka Man

Mr. Tan Qinglian?

Mr. Li Jialin?
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Notes:

Re-designated from Deputy Chairman to Chairman on 1 August 2013.
Retired on 3 September 2013.

Resigned on 1 August 2013.

Appointed on 24 July 2013.

A woN =

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 32 to
page 39 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in
September 2013 and has posted it on the Company's website
(www.681hk.com). The Nomination Committee was delegated
by the Board to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board on annual basis.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board members has no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this annual
report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company
also maintains on its website (www.681hk.com) and on the
Stock Exchange's website an updated listed of its Directors (by
category) identifying the role and function.
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The Board normally has at least four (4) scheduled meetings a
year and meets at other times as and when required to review
financial, internal control, risk management, company strategy,
operating performance and ad hoc projects of the Group. The
Board requires Directors to devote sufficient time and attention to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, during the year ended
31 March 2014, a total number of twenty (20) Board meetings,
three (3) Audit Committee meetings, four (4) Remuneration
Committee meetings and four (4) Nomination Committee
meetings were held. Minutes of these meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary of the Company and are open for inspection
by the Directors.

In consideration of the Code Provision on Directors’ time
commitments, the Chairman held a private Board meeting
(without the presence of the managing Director and executive
Directors) in 2014 to review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether he is spending sufficient time in performing them.

Regarding disclosure of the number and nature of offices held
by the Directors in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as their identities and the time
involved (the “Commitments”) to the Company, all Directors
have agreed to disclose their Commitments to the Company in
a timely manner and confirm their other directorships, major
appointments and interests to the Company in a timely manner.

During the year, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have
spent sufficient time performing their responsibilities. The
individual attendance records of each Director, on a named basis,
at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee as well as the
Shareholders’ meeting(s) during the year ended 31 March 2014
are set out below:
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Name of Directors

Number of Meetings

Executive Directors

Dr. Mo Shikang

Mr. Zhang Hesheng
Mr. Jin Song

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus
Mr. Xu Ruixin @

Mr. Yang Songsheng
Mr. Yeung Paak Ching "

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Dr. Liu Junmin

Prof. Zhao Yanyun®

Mr. Sin Ka Man

Mr. Tan Qinglian@

Mr. Li Jialin @

Notes:
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(1) Resigned on 1 August 2013.

(2)  Retired on 3 September 2013.

(3)  Appointed on 24 July 2013.

(4)  Meeting was attended by their alternates.
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The high attendance record at the Board and its committee
meetings in year 2013/14, which was reviewed by the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee in June 2014,
demonstrates Directors’ strong commitment to the Company.

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the Board
and delegated to the management. The Board provides leadership
and approves strategic polices and plans with a view to enhance
Shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day operations of the
Company are delegated to the management. The Board has
full support of the managing Director and the management to
discharge its responsibilities.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to managing and executive Directors
and the management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
above mentioned officers.

Each executive Director is delegated individual responsibility to
oversee and monitor the operations of the specific business unit
and to implement the strategies and polices set by the Board. Each
Director may seek for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon making request
to the Board. All members of the Board are provided with monthly
updates to enable them to discharge their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance coverage in respect of legal action for the
Directors, which is reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.
The Company undertakes an annual review of the Company’s
Directors and Officers insurance policy in light of recent trends in
the insurance market and other relevant factors. The review will
benchmark the amount of cover against other similar companies
and will consider whether separate cover will be required for
members of the Board.
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The Company has received, from each independent non-executive
Directors, a written annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the
Nomination Committee considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
independent guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Through active participation in Board meetings, the independent
non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business and
financial expertise, experiences and independent judgment to
the Board. Independent Non-executive Directors have taken
and/or shall take lead when potential conflicts of interest arise.
Independent Board Committee, comprising all independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, has formed and/or will form
to advise the independent Shareholders on those connected
transactions to be approved by the independent Shareholders at
the special general meeting of the Company. All independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company. One of the independent non-executive
Directors possesses the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a services contract with the Company for specific term of
3 years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
For independent non-executive Directors who has served the
Company for more than nine years, his/her further appointment
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company and
the papers to the Shareholders accompanying that resolution
will include the reasons why the Board believes he/she is still
independent and should be re-elected.
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The Board members are supplied with comprehensive board
papers and relevant materials within a reasonable period of time
in advance of the intended meeting date (in any event no less
than 3 days before the date of the meeting). All Directors are
given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for regular
Board meetings. To facilitate the decision-making process, the
Directors are free to have access to the management for enquiries
and to obtain further information, when required.

All Directors have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who ensures that the Board receives
appropriate and timely information for its decision-making and
that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are being followed. The Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director,
who perform similar role as chief executive officer, to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The respective responsibilities
of the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly defined
and set out in writing. The Chairman provides leadership and
is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate information and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The
position of the Chairman is held by Dr. Mo Shikang.

He ensures that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. He also ensures
all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at
Board meetings. The Chairman has encouraged Directors with
different views to voice their concerns, allowed sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensured that Board decisions fairly reflect
Board consensus. He has pushed all Directors to make a full and
active contributions to the Board's affairs and takes the lead to
ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as whole.
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The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The
Managing Director is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organisational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board's approval. The
position of Managing Director is currently held by Mr. Jin Song.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the Group
structure, Board procedures, business, management and operations
of the Company, etc. and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

An induction programme covering the roles of a Director from the
strategic, planning and management perspective, as well as the
essence of corporate governance and the trends in these areas,
were therefore arranged for Prof. Zhao Yanyun, an independent
non-executive Director, when he joined the Board in July 2013.
Relevant training material was also provided to Prof. Zhao while
he was not able to attend all parts of the programme.

The Board acknowledged that continuous professional
development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to
ensure the continued enhancement of their skills and knowledge.

In light of recent developments in the Listing Rules (including
in relation to board diversity and trading halts) and the New
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, briefing materials were also
provided to members of the Board by the Company Secretary to
keep them abreast of the latest developments.
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Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and materials to
develop and refresh Directors’ (Dr. Mo Shikang, Mr. Zhang Hesheng,
Mr. Jin Song, Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus, Dr. Liu Junmin, Prof. Zhao
Yanyun and Mr. Sin Ka Man) knowledge and skills from time to
time. All the information and materials are relevant to the Group's
business, the economy, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to each Director.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company'’s expense. The Company Secretary is responsible to keep
records of training taken by each Director.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which includes developing and reviewing the Company'’s policy
and practices on corporate governance, assessing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management. During the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Board reviewed, monitored and assessed the policy and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development to Directors and senior management, policies and
practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirement and the
compliance with the Model Code under the Listing Rule and disclosure
requirements in this Corporate Government Report. The Board will
be kept under review in light of the changing legal and regulatory
requirements.
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are disclosed in
the corporate website of the Company and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The members of the Audit Committee at present are all
independent non-executive Directors whereas, the majority
of Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
comprise independent non-executive Directors. The list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out under
"Corporate Information” in this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are

able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at Company’s expenses.

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
of Remuneration Committee was suggested under the Code
Provision under the Code. The Remuneration Committee currently
comprises the following five members:

(i)  Mr. Sin Ka Man”, chairman

(i) Dr. Mo Shikang*

(iii)  Mr. Zhang Hesheng*

(iv)  Dr. Liu Junmin®

(v)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

* independent non-executive Director

# Executive Director
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
determine the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has primary
responsibility for making recommendations on and approving the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages
of the executive Directors and senior management to the Board
after consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman,
assessed performance of the executive Directors and accessed to
professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, when necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held four (4) meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2014 for, inter alia, reviewing annually the
policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior management
and procedures for fixing the remuneration package, assessing
the performance of all Directors, making recommendation
on the remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior
management, approving the terms of independent non-executive
Directors’ service contracts, recommending the remuneration
package of new independent non-executive Director, confirming
the remaining exercise period of shares options granted to two
resigned executive Directors, evaluating the salary adjustments
to two executive Directors, and/or other related matters. The
attendance records of the Remuneration Committee are set out
under "Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” under the
Corporate Governance Report, on page 65 of this annual report.

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
was suggested under the Code Provision under the Code. The
Audit Committee comprises the following three members,
all independent non-executive Directors, among them one
independent non-executive director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company's existing external
auditor. The Audit Committee currently comprises the following
three members:

(i)  Mr. Sin Ka Man, chairman
(i) Dr. Liu Junmin

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(a)

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the responsible
staff of accounting and financial report function,
compliance officer (if any), internal auditor or external
auditor before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with the external auditor and
its independence by reference to the work performed
and services provided by the external auditor, their
fees, their firm's standards and practices and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor.

To review the connected and continuing connected
transactions as disclosed in the annual report, if any, and
confirm that those transactions entered into by the Group
were (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (ii) on arm’s length basis, on normal commercial
terms and on terms that are fair and reasonable as far as
the Shareholders are concerned; and (iii) in accordance with
the terms of the agreements governing such transactions.

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held three (3) meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2014 to review, assess and comment on the
financial results and reports, financial reporting, connected
transactions and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes the change
in external auditor of the Company, and the appointment of the
external auditor in the annual general meeting. The attendance
records of the Audit Committee are set out under "Number
of Meetings Held and Attendance” on page 65 of this annual
report.

BEREREGZIZRERENIISE:

() EREFERIVBHRRLBENE
Bl - WERBET MY BREBEZE
BEBT REXME(WA)  AEBZBE
FOMNEZBERE Z ERERAKTEE
HE -

(b) ZERINEZBENETT 2 TIERATRHER
% WE - R BEDTTHE R K B I AN EE (T
fERAR - A AT ELONEE AR B ED 2 BE AR I HL B
M UREE BEREBRIMNEEE
mRESERERBRS-

(0 HHFHRAFBEZBERFERERS
(B UHERRNEEMFILZZER
RN AEE 2 BE R —REHBE
B (VRATFEE ERRERGR LS
BREMEBAFEEZIGH: KL
MERER S Z IR ET L

]

(d BIAARRBZHBHREHE  ABEPERE
HEMEAREERGNABEIEZETESR
R B RR

o B

HZE2014F3A31BLFE EZLECY
BUITZRed UEBARTHTEESE LR
& HBRE BEISRRERFR ARQT
CANELRNARERESEIZF  IMNERK
HMEE  URRBREAEFRAGETINEGZ
A WHHIREER - BREE 2 g%
FBRBENAFRESEZ G N L H
BEIWE T



During the year ended 31 March 2014, the fee paid/payable to
auditor in respect of audit service and non-audit services provided
by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services REHE
Audit for the year FEBEXZ
Other H b

The written terms of reference was suggested (amended from
time to time) under the Code Provision under the Code. The
Nomination Committee comprises the following four members,
major of them are independent non-executive Directors:

(i)  Dr. Mo Shikang*, chairman

(i) Dr. Liu Junmin®

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

(iv)  Mr. Sin Ka Man”

* independent non-executive Director
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
followings:—

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy,

(2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(4) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board,
the summary of which are set out below:

(@) With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

(b) In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

(¢)  All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee has held four (4) meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2014 inter alia, reviewing the policy,
nomination procedures and the process and criteria for the
nomination of Directors, monitoring the composition and
effectiveness of the Board, assessing the independence of each
independent non-executive Director, sourcing individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, assessing the diversity of the
Board, reviewing the training record of Directors, recommending
the appointment of new independent non-executive Director,
suggesting the re-designation of the member of the Board,
approving the retirement of Directors and identifying those
Directors to be retired by rotation, and then be re-elected as
Directors in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. The
attendance records of the Nomination Committee are set out
under “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” on page 65.

Analysis of the diversity of the Board by Nomination Committee is
shown by the following charts:
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The Board has overall responsibilities for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal controls system to safeguard the interests of Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviews the implementation of the system of internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions. A review
will be conducted at least annually on the effectiveness of the
system of internal controls. During the year, a meeting has held
reviewing and monitoring effectiveness of our major subsidiaries
in relation to the progress of completion on operational
targets, market development, customer service, production and
operations management, safety management system, finance,
construction works, ad hoc projects and overall performance.

The Company is committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relation policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings with institutional
investors and analysts are conducted from time to time. The
Company also replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely. The
Directors host the annual general meeting each year to meet the
Shareholders and answer their enquiry.

The Company’s website at www.681hk.com contains important
corporate information, biographical details of Directors,
organisation structure, annual and interim reports, major
historical developments with comprehensive and user-friendly
information about the Group, as well as announcements
and circulars issued by the Company in order to enable the
Company’s Shareholders and the investor community to have
timely access to updated information about the Company and the
Group.
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Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may deposit a requisition to convene a
special general meeting and state the purpose therefor at the
Company’s registered office in Bermuda at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

The Company has adopted communications policy with
Shareholders and investors that provide ready, equal and timely
access to understandable information about the Company, the
policy is posted on the Company’s website (www.681hk.com).
The Board is welcome to Shareholders for their comments and/
or enquiries about the Company. Shareholders may send their
comments and/or enquiries to the Board by addressing them to
the Company Secretary who will ensure these enquires and/or
comments to be properly directed to the Board. Shareholders who
wish to put forward proposal for the Company’s consideration
at the general meetings can send their proposal to the Company
Secretary.

Pursuant to Bye-law of the Company, if a Shareholder wish to
propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, the Shareholder
should deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be
given to the head office of the Company within the 7-day
period commencing the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting (or such other period as may be determined and
announced by the Directors from time to time). The relevant
procedures is posted on the Company’s website.

BETMNVDRRRBHBEREN 52— 2K
RARRHERBRREFNARE  EH I
AZER TRRXREAQNG AR EFME
B& - #bik ACanon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda °

ARBIEHRMERRLREEBABR  ##
RATBE R BUS B - MR K SRR 2 AR
AR AR AR B A (www.681hk.
comPE -EFGEURRANEFSRLE
RE/SEH - BRRAIMNEEFEFTIEHE
RE/RE#H WEARGARRRIWE i
REZEAR/ XEREGRERE -RRINAK
REZBARARARERAE LEE ]
ARAARWETREEAE-

REBARBZ AR MAEZRRTES
ZIMATRARFRRAGEREES K
RARGREAHEZBE2AHRBCEHME
SEETRRERATZZEFEMEE @
ARAREMERREREMERAS - HEE
FF 1A 2 72 ) 48 i T 3



The Company's annual general meeting is one of the principal
channels of communication with its Shareholders. The Board and
the management are committed to the constructive use of annual
general meeting as a forum to meet with Shareholders and to
hear their views and answer their questions about the Group and
its business.

During the year, Dr. Mo Shikang, the chairman, attended the
Shareholders’ meetings held by the Company. Dr. Mo Shikang will
use his endeavours to attend all future Shareholders’ meetings.
The chairman of the Board did and would arrange for the
chairmen of Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Audit Committee or their alternates be available to answer
questions at each annual general meeting of the Company. A
member of the independent board committee of the Company
also be available to answer questions at any general meeting of
the Company to approve connected transactions or any other
transactions that are subject to independent Shareholders’
approval.

The Board did and would arrange auditor to attend every annual
general meeting of the Company to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

An explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll
will be explained in every general meeting of the Company.

The Company's website (www.681hk.com) is maintained for the
dissemination of the Company’s announcements, press releases
and other relevant financial and non-financial information on a
timely basis.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Executive Director maintains
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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Deloitte.
=)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINESE PEOPLE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
TRERAERQF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 209,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’'s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and
of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2013 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 24 July 2013.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2014
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Revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other gains and losses

Other income

Finance costs

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit (loss) before tax
Income tax (expense) credit

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive expense for the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Total comprehensive income (expense) for
the year
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PEd (Ax) Bz

AERER (BE)

AEFHMEESH
HZAReEH O RERR AR

AHEEREZAARE

AEREZEPA (TH) B

2013
RMB'000
ARETFIT
(restated)
(&E75)

Notes

B =E

7 769,456
(619,020)

150,436

9 (557,762)
10 22,122
13 (2,763)
(42,725)

(111,259)

6,548

71,188

(464,215)
14 138,680

11 (325,535)

(325,535)



Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share
— basic and diluted

Note
B 5

TOEEZAERmF (BR)
ZA/NIE Z DN
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THIREME 2 2 EBA ()
M
ZAN/NEIE DN
FFIE A s

BRERN (B1R)
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2013
RMB'000
ARETFIT
(restated)
(&E5)

(335,415)
9,880

(325,535)

(335,415)
9,880

(325,535)

RMBA R %
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale investments

Deposit paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments

Current assets

Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Amount due from a joint venture
Amount due from an associate

Prepaid lease payments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Tax liabilities
Amount due to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary
Amount due to
a former director/director
Bank borrowings
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17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25
26
27
27

19
28

29

27

30
31

31 March

2013
20133H31H
RMB'000
AR®EF T
(restated)
(&%)

322,000
14,200
23,139

7,065
21,234
97,677

408,017

6,990

28,510

928,832

21,549
155,962

530

456
258,520

437,017

134,490
35,101

3,413
26,000

199,004

1 April

2012
2012%4H18
RMB'000
ARBTFT
(restated)
(&%)

305,414
13,500
15,912
39,650

656,175

336,957
67,990

13,571

1,449,169

15,781

69,485

365
293,195

378,826

116,590
34,235

3,119
18,500

172,444



Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Amount due to
a former director/director
Deferred tax liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 209 were
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Notes
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33

46

30
32

31 March

2013
201343H31H
RMB'000
AREF T
(restated)
(&%)

238,013

1,166,845

390,626
691,820

1,082,446
59,186

1,141,632

20,681
4,532

25,213

1,166,845
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1 April

2012
2012%4H18
RMB'000
ARBFT
(restated)
(&%)

206,382

1,655,551

390,626
1,030,936

1,421,562
50,356

1,471,918

22,552
161,081

183,633

1,655,551

N

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 20146 A27B L/ RIRHETIE - WA TRESE
2014 and are signed on its behalf by: =

DR. MO SHIKANG MR. JIN SONG
Director Director
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At 1 April 2012 (note g)

Effect of changes in accounting
policies of application of
HKFRS 11

At 1 April 2012 (restated)

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Appropriations

Change in ownership interests
in an associate

Dividends paid to
a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

At 31 March 2013 (restated)

Profit for the year
Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Appropriations
Dividends paid to
a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary
Acquisition of assets through
acquisition of
a subsidiary (note 34)
Capital injection from
a non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary (note f)
Acquisition of additional interests
of a subsidiary (note €)
Lapse of share options (note 35a)

Proceeds from issuance of warrants %7

Recognition of share-based
payment expense in relation to
issue of warrants (note 35b)

At 31 March 2014

201254818
(Htg)

ERERHBREES
ENFZEHHRES

pe
201254718 (8E3])

FEEBRREAX AR
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R-RBEARRERZZ
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(Rl
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LY ie)
BRI A (P3E35)
PRIEBAGHE
BIRREZRRN
WRIBERBRAER
(Hi3#350)

12014534318

Share
capital

e
RMB'000
AREFT

390,626

390,626

390,626

390,626

Share Capital
premium reserve
BB EE EARE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR
(note a)

(Hita)

788,187 2,086
788,187 2,086
788,187 2,086
788,187 2,086

Contributed
surplus

#ABR
RMB'000
ARETT
(note b)
(Hizb)

92,665

92,665

92,665

92,665

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREARLE
Surplus Property  Investment ~Share-based
reserve Capital luati | pensati
fund  contribution reserve reserve reserve
R B
0% RE  AEHZ
BBRARE  RARE  EfMiRB  ERRE  WERR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note ¢)
(M)
43,948 712 400 19 14,313
(8,577) = (400) (1) =
35371 1121 = 18 14313
5,456 = = = =
40,827 7,121 = 18 14313
- - - (1) -
= = = m =
10,934 = = = =
= = = = (14313)
= = = = 9,021
= = = = 25611
51,761 112 - 7 34632

Other
reserve

Rt
RMB'000
N S
(note d)
(Kzd)

6,443

(2,203)

4,240

Retained
earnings
(accumulated
losses)

RERA
(ZitER)
RMB'000
Nz S o

81,597

8978

90,575

(335,415)
(5,456)

(3,701)

(253,997)

47,298

47,298

(10,934)

14313

(203,320)

Total

&t
RMB'000
AEAFR

1,421,562

1,421,562

(335,415)

(3,701)

1,082,446

6,443

(2,203)

9,021

25611

1,168,605

Non-
controlling
interests

FERER

RMB'000

ARETT

73,829

(23473

50,356

9,880

(1,050)

59,186

10,645

10,645

(2,105)

4,900

48459

(6,900)

114,185

Total

Ay
aa

RMB'000
ARETT

1,495,391

(23473

1471918

(325,535)

(3,701)

(1,050)

1,141,632

57,932

(2,105)

4,900

54,902

(9,103)

9,021

25611

1,282,790



Notes:

Capital reserve was recognised as a result of acquisition of additional
interest in an associate which became a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the Company’s share capital issued as consideration in exchange for
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
at the time of the Company's listing in 1997.

The articles of association of the Company'’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") state that they should make
an appropriation of 10% of their profit for the year (prepared under
generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the
surplus reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of the paid-in capital.
The surplus reserve fund shall only be used for making good losses,
capitalisation into paid-in capital and expansion of their production and
operation.

The other reserve of the Group represents the effect arising from the
change in the Group's equity interest on existing subsidiary without losing
control.

On 3 April 2013, the Group entered into an equity transfer agreement
with a non-controlling shareholder of Xi‘an Civigas Co. Ltd. (“Xian
Civigas”).
transferred 9.15% equity interest of Xi‘an Civigas to the Group at a
consideration of RMB9,103,000. Accordingly, the Group increased its
shareholding in Xi‘an Civigas from 70% to 79.15%. The difference
between the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the additional
interest acquired by the Group of RMB2,203,000 was debited to equity as
other reserve during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Pursuant to the agreement, a non-controlling shareholder

On 3 April 2013, a non-controlling shareholder made a total capital
injection of RMB54,902,000, which included property, plant and
equipment of RMB48,806,000 and prepaid lease payments of
RMB6,096,000, to Xi‘an Civigas, a subsidiary of the Group, at fair value.
The non-controlling shareholder increased its shareholding in Xi‘an Civigas
from 6.88% to 40% after the capital injection. Accordingly, the Group's
equity interest in Xi'an Civigas was diluted from 79.15% to 51%.

The opening balance has been retranslated from Hong Kong dollars
("HKD") to Renminbi (“RMB"”) as the directors of the Company
determined to change the presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements starting from 1 April 2013. Details as disclosed in
note 1.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Income from available-for-sale investments
Bank interest income
Interest income from loan to
a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
Dividend income from an available-for-sale investment
Fair value changes of investment properties
Gain on bargain purchase of acquisition of
an associate
Fair value change of contingent consideration
Loss on derecognition of compensation receivable
Share-based payment expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Net (reversal of allowances) allowances charged in
respect of trade receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment
Write down of inventories
Finance costs

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in amount due to
a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary

Cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refund

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Net cash from operating activities
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2013
RMB’000
ARBTT
(restated)
(s&E=7)

(464,215)

(6,548)
(71,188)
(11,300)

(3,541)

(5)
(6)

(22,330)
(60,000)

238
33,333
476
19,192
1,145

601,608
32,585

4,266

172
2,763

56,645
(5,940)

(27,622)
17,828

40,911
(17,003)

23,908



INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments

Addition of available-for-sale investments

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of
a subsidiary

Addition of prepaid lease payments

Repayment from a joint venture

Advance to a joint venture

Advance to an associate

Dividend received

Dividend received from associates

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loan advanced to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Proceeds from issue of warrants

Dividends paid to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

Repayment from a director

Advance to a director

Interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
represented by bank balances and cash

KRERD
BEME BB MRS
BEME BBELREBAR
BENEZENERS

T 45 145

538 T — 2 MR
aE

ENENES

BELEEN

A-MAELEBHK

A — B A R B

B IR 8

BB A RS

HUEN VYELa
08

1 — P 2 ) 3 AR 2
NS0 E

B I 8

KRERSAAREFR

BEED
PrEBHRITER
BERITEMN
BTREER ZEHR
7 — BT B8~ Bl R4 Ak
a3 Z BB

—REBEFEN
m—REFEHK

2 FE

MELTHELRSFHE
RBeMREEFEEB BN

OB ) #%
FURERREFEEER

FREGAAEFEEB
BIERITREBR LR

2013

Note RMB’000
B 5 ARBFT
(restated)

(ggE=7)

(37,946)

(17,981)

34 -
(7,794)

(530)

5

12

3,541

(60,693)

13,500
(6,000)

(1,050)
(3,206)

(1,134)

2,110

(34,675)

293,195

258,520



Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in Bermuda
on 13 November 1996. On 24 April 1997, the Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
the Company’s annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is also the function currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

The presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements in prior financial years was HKD. Starting from 1 April
2013, the directors of the Company have determined to change
the presentation currency of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from HKD to RMB, as all of its principal subsidiaries
are operating in the PRC transacted using RMB. Accordingly,
the directors consider that it is more appropriate to use RMB as
the presentation currency to better reflect the Group’s business
activities.

The change in presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements has been applied retrospectively in accordance with
HKAS 8 “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors”, and the comparative figures in the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 1 April 2012 and 31 March
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 March 2013 have also been re-presented in RMB
accordingly.
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In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS12

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 36
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009
- 2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure of
interests in other entities: Transition
guidance

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-current assets

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entities

Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
financial statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12
“Disclosure of interests in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) “Separate financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011) “Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
regarding the transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it
deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 "Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an investee when
a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ¢)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been included
in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over an
investee.
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The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the Group’s
investees in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 10. The
directors of the Company concluded that there was no impact to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the adoption of
HKFRS 10.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”, and
the guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC) —
INT 13 “Jointly controlled entities — non-monetary contributions
by venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified and
accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types of
joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures. The
classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is determined
based on the rights and obligations of parties to the joint
arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form of the
arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating
to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three types of
joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based
on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement
that was established through a separate entity was classified as a
jointly controlled entity).
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The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations are different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly held),
its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly),
its revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share
of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts
for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses,
relating to its interest in the joint operation in accordance with
the applicable standards.

The application of HKFRS 11 resulted in changes in the
accounting of the Group's jointly controlled entities that are
previously accounted for using proportionate consolidation.
Under HKFRS 11, the Group’s jointly controlled entities were
classified as joint ventures and accounted for using the
equity method, resulting in the aggregation of the Group's
proportionate share of respective net assets and items of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income into a single line item
which were presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as “interests in joint ventures” and
“share of results of joint ventures” respectively.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11. The directors
concluded that the Group's investments in Southwest Panva
Gas Co. Ltd. (“Southwest Panva”), Yunnan Panva Gas Co. Ltd.
("Yunnan Panva”), Fujian Province An Ran Gas Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Fujian An Ran”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “Fujian An Ran Group”), which were classified as jointly
controlled entities under HKAS 31 and accounted for using the
proportionate consolidation method, should be classified as
associates and joint ventures respectively under HKFRS 11 and
accounted for using the equity method.
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HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Details have
been disclosed in notes 22, 23 and 46.

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,
and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad. The fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in
the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.
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HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any
new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013 comparative
period. Other than the additional disclosures as set out in notes
18 and 41, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income”. Upon the adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group's ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as the 'statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’. The amendments
to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012, the
title of which is Annual Improvements to HKFRSs (2009- 2011
Cycle). The effective date of these amendments is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related notes
are not required to accompany the third statement of financial
position.

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, and HKFRS 12 “Consolidation financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance” for the first time, which has resulted in a
material effect on the information in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 April 2012. In accordance with the
amendments to HKAS 1, the Group has therefore presented a
third statement of financial position as at 1 April 2012 without
the related notes.
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The Group has early applied amendments to HKAS 36
“Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets”
in advance to its effective date (i.e. 1 January 2014). The
amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (“CGU") to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no impairment
or reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore,
the amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU was determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.
Accordingly, the Group has not disclosed the recoverable amounts
of the Group’s CGUs to which goodwill had been allocated, there
is no other impact to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

The Group has not early applied the other new or revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The following tables summarise the material impacts resulting
from the above changes in accounting policies and change in
presentation currency on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B Z2014F3831H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(" H KFRSS") (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policies and change in presentation

currency (Continued)

2. BRI REETEEM
R EZER ([FBM

WEER]) 2

LY RR BB RENE
WRE 2B ()

As Application

originally of
stated HKFRS 11 As restated
FE A
EBMERE
REEE275 B E1155 REY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥T R AR¥TR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Ffsta) (HzEb)
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H
Property, plant and equipment W HE KR 863,401 (541,401) 322,000
Investment properties KEWME 23,237 (9,037) 14,200
Prepaid lease payments FERNEE 65,791 (42,196) 23,595
Goodwill HE 86,360 (79,295) 7,065
Intangible assets mRAE 70,746 (49,512) 21,234
Interests in associates AN 33,431 64,246 97,677
Interests in joint ventures REeEBLERER - 408,017 408,017
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 7,322 (332) 6,990
Deposit paid for acquisition of HBEYE BERHZE
property, plant and equipment and AR TR AR &
prepaid lease payments BfZE 34,594 (6,084) 28,510
Inventories FE 62,506 (40,957) 21,549
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e SR IE 276,232 (120,270) 155,962
Amount due from an associate FE U — ] Bt 42 B 5RIB 840 (840) -
Amount due from FE U — RS E 8
a jointly controlled entity I8 273 (273) -
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —EEERFENRIE - 530 530
Pledged bank deposits B RITIF A 5,106 (5,106) -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 314,376 (55,856) 258,520
Total assets BEE 1,844,215 (478,366) 1,365,849

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2013-2014 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & Z2014F3831HLLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRI REETE B
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL R EZER ([FBM
REPORTING STANDARDS REZER L) =
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in XS HREZRBRESNE
accounting policies and change in presentation WRE o XEML (&)

currency (Continued)

As Application

originally of
stated HKFRS 11 As restated

FE F

ERMBRE
REEZ25 R E1158 REY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T AR®T T

(Note a) (Note b)

(Hfzta) (HzEb)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b e 5RI8 299,446 (164,956) 134,490
Tax liabilities HIEAE 54,086 (18,985) 35,101
Amount due to a director BN —REEHIAE 24,094 - 24,094
Bank borrowings RITEE 285,934 (259,934) 26,000
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE 15,550 (11,018) 4,532
Total liabilities BEE 679,110 (454,893) 224,217
Net assets EEFE 1,165,105 (23,473) 1,141,632
Share capital [N 390,626 - 390,626
Reserves s 685,483 6,337 691,820
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR M 2 88,996 (29,810) 59,186
Total equity Mg 1,165,105 (23,473) 1,141,632

TRERARAAF
2013-20145 R 101



At 1 April 2012

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale investments

Deposit paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from an associate

Held-to-maturity investments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

MR2012F4 818
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AfHHERE

BEVE BFERZENAR
BNESENES

7 R B Aty MR IR
FE Y — Bt &~ B 5RR
REZIHRE
EEMRBITFR
RITEBRERE

\m][Y

ged
g

As
originally
stated

REZ7
RMB'000
AREEF T
(Note a)
(Mf3Ea)

719,554
21,828
41,576

118,945

707,932
31,582

68,322

20,272
38,940
136,926
838
33,000
4,386
284,591

Application
of

HKFRS 11
&R

BN B®RE
HERIE1155
RMB'000
AR®ETFTT
(Note b)
(KzEb)

As restated

RE7
RMB’000
ARBTTT

305,414
13,500
16,277
39,650

656,175

336,957
67,990

13,571
15,781
69,485

293,195



Total assets

Trade and other payables

Tax liabilities

Amount due to a joint venturer
Amount due to an associate
Amount due to a director

Bank borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Share capital
Reserves
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BEE

B 5 REMEN IR

EN—Ma&bERA
e — Rt = 2 =] 3R

BN —REBEHA
RITIEE
ERETIREE

FEN=

G

BEFE

A
feé 178
FEFRRHE 21

As
originally
stated

REZ27
RMB’000
ARETF T
(Note a)
(Mfsxa)

2,228,692

257,805
45,517
23

1

25,671
231,553
172,731

733,301

1,495,391

390,626
1,030,936
73,829

1,495,391

Application
of

HKFRS 11
&

BN B®mE
ZERIE115R
RMB’000
AR T
(Note b)
(KizEb)

(400,697)

(141,215)
(11,282)
(23

(1
(213,053)
(11,650)

)
)

(377,224)

(23,473)

(23,473)

(23,473)

As restated

&7
RMB’000
ARBET T

1,827,995

116,590
34,235

25,671
18,500
161,081

356,077

1,471,918

390,626
1,030,936
50,356

1,471,918



For the year ended 31 March 2013

Revenue ]
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Fair value change of contingent
consideration

Selling and administrative expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Bargain purchase gain for acquisition of
jointly controlled entities

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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Notes:

a. Starting from 1 April 2013, the directors of the Company have
determined to change the presentation currency of the Group's
consolidated financial statements from HKD to RMB as explained
in note 1. The closing exchange rates of HKD against RMB applied
in the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 March
2013 and 1 April 2012 were 1: 0.809 and 1: 0.814 respectively.
The average exchange rate of HKD against RMB applied in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2013 was 1: 0.814.

b. The effects of application of HKFRS 11 included reclassification of
certain balances in the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for consistent presentation with the financial information
for the current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010
- 2012 cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011
- 2013 cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and  Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 7 and transition disclosures?

ML -
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Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21

Investment entities’

Accounting for acquisition of
interests in joint operation®
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation®

Defined benefit plans: employee
contributions?

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities'

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting'

Financial instruments?

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,

with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

earlier application permitted.

2 Available for application -the mandatory effective date will be

determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,

with earlier application permitted.

Other than set out below, the directors anticipated that the
application of the new and revised HKFRSs would have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.
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HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e Al recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as
at 31 March 2014, the application of HKFRS 9 will affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments but not on the Group’s other financial assets and
financial liabilities, in which the available-for-sale investments will
either be reclassified or measured at fair value through profit or
loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties that are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange of goods and services.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has the power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flow relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes”
and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

Changes resulting from events after the acquisition date are not
measurement period adjustments. Such changes are therefore
accounted for separately from the business combination.
Contingent consideration that is not classified as an equity
instrument is subsequently measured at fair value, with the
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s CGU (or groups of CGU) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated are
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’'s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates is described below.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

When an associate is acquired in stages, any previously held
equity interest, being an available-for-sale investment measured
at cost, is re-measured to fair value at the date on which the
Group obtains significant influence over the investee and is
treated as a disposal of the previously held equity interest for fair
value with a gain or loss on such disposal being recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value of the previously held equity interest
at the date on which the Group obtains significant influence over
the investee is the deemed cost of the investment in the associate

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or
joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales and distribution of natural gas and liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG") and gas appliances are recognised when goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when the services are provided
The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from gas

connection construction contracts is described in the accounting
policies of construction contracts below.
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Commission income from welfare lottery sales is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant lease terms.

Dividend income from a financial asset is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or fair value as deemed cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Properties, pinelines and other assets in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced by
end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained earnings/accumulated losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal and retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measure at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss rising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).
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Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially measured at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability,
as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under trade and other receivables.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint arrangements, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment properties portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to the Group’s investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts entirely through use.

Current and deferred tax for the year are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are not recorded until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) and the retirement funds scheme managed by local
social security bureau in accordance with the government
regulations of the PRC, and are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: available-for-sale investments and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

1]
i

MRTREAGHNGX2—77 &’
EL%EM\ B 75 AR O R A RE

H> ‘”]"ﬂ

E5E
BENM

R

§n|

TRMEENERABNIEAIAEFE K
BABRTIREENEHBBEERBH IR
GRA (BRAREFABENEREEXRS
BMEERIN DRFERR B REREIMA
THEEXNCTBRABIAAE KNSR E
EXTMAB AR BN - WBEAIAE
AAABSNEREESSRABEENER
RBRA B HER BB -

PRMEEANSBAN TS EER  AIEHE
BREARERRERKIE - HEHIRE S F
BEHERBEMMEL BR IR RERIE
E-FTENERECEERHEEZERERE
TR 5 A BEERRARLEUBER - ER®
18 B sl H B ) B KA T 3505 #7 sl 1B A P i
VRRERARNEEZCREEE R K
SHE °



The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amount due from a joint
venture, amount due from an associate and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss.
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Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale investments and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale investment
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.
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For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

®* it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the credit period, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale investment is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investment, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve.
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Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by cash for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments are
equity instruments. The net proceeds received from the issue of
warrants are recognised in equity. The share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share capital and share premium
accounts upon the exercise of the warrants. When the warrants
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, amount
due to a former director/director and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based compensation reserve).
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based compensation reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

The fair value of warrants issued in exchange for services
rendered by a director of the Company is measured by reference
to the fair value of the warrants granted. The excess of the fair
value of the warrants over the consideration received by the
Group recorded in equity, is recognised as expenses, at the date
of grant with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve).
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on the historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Construction revenue from gas connection contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the proportion of the contract costs incurred for the work
performed to date over the estimated total contract costs.
Accordingly, any changes to the estimated total contract cost may
have material impact on the contract revenue recognised in each
accounting period over the contract term.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainties at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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Where there is indication that the property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments are impaired, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount which is the higher of fair value less cost
of disposal and value in use require the use of estimates such as
the future revenue and discount rates. As at 31 March 2014, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments are RMB431,216,000 (2013: RMB322,000,000)
and RMB35,728,000 (2013: RMB23,595,000) respectively.
Impairment loss of RMB4,266,000 was recognised for property,
plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2013 as
disclosed in note 9(a).

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets
are impaired requires estimation of the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The discount rate represents the rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill
and intangible assets are RMB7,065,000 (2013: RMB7,065,000)
and RMB20,317,000 (2013: RMB21,234,000) respectively.
Impairment losses of RMB32,585,000 and RMB601,608,000 were
recognised for goodwill and intangible assets respectively during
the year ended 31 March 2013, as disclosed in notes 20 and 21
respectively.
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account the estimated residual value. Intangible assets are
amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The determination of the useful lives and residual values
involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually
the residual value and the useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such differences from the original
estimates will impact the depreciation and amortisation in the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. Impairment
loss are applied to trade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible
or when the net present value of the receivable is less than
the carrying amount of the receivable. The identification of
impairment loss requires the use of judgments and estimates.
Where the expectation on the recoverability of trade receivables
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the impairment in
the periods in which such estimate has been changed. As at
31 March 2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
RMB27,516,000 (2013: RMB23,311,000) (net of accumulated
impairment losses of RMB1,215,000 (2013: RMB1,295,000)).
Details of movement in impairment on trade receivables is
disclosed in note 26.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, including
bank borrowings as disclosed in note 31, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves as
disclosed in note 33 and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity respectively.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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The carrying amounts of each of the following categories
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are set out as follows:

NTEEReREER BB BENRE
HIRZBREESFIT

2013
RMB'000
AREFT T
(restated)
(&B&E5)

Financial assets EWMEE
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 6,990

Loans and receivables B EWRIE

(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREREMESEEIER) 356,288
363,278

Financial liabilities ol =R
At amortised cost bieg: X1 0N 84,848

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, amount
due from a joint venture, amount due from an associate,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and a
former director/director, bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank deposits (note 28) and variable-rate
bank borrowings (note 31). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank deposits and bank borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group has exposure to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the loan receivable included in other receivables
and amount due to a former director/director which are
at fixed interest rate (as disclosed in notes 26 and 30
respectively).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. Floating-
rate bank balances have not been included in the sensitivity
analysis as the management considers that the interest
rate would not fluctuate significantly in the near future
and therefore the financial impact to the Group is not
significant. For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amounts outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2014 would decrease/increase by RMB94,000 (2013:
post-tax loss increase/decrease by RMB98,000).
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Currency risk refers to the risk associated with movements
in foreign currency rates which will affect the Group’s
financial results and its cash flow. As at 31 March 2014 and
2013, certain bank balances of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entities, i.e. RMB. The Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging the potential foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

HKD S

United States dollars (“USD") x5t ([ZEx])

B fg T T R NS i Sk B B AR R B A
HERSECVBEERERSRE
[B B - 5220144 201343 831H K&
SEETRITESGUSREBER 2R
B (BDARE) AN INR EHEFHE o
7 £ [ 3 4% AE{r] NS SR ISR o AT
EREERINES R CRE  WKRE
FEREZEHFERNZINERR -

MNBEEIR - AREB AN EZ B
EEZEREWNT:

Assets
EE
2013
RMB'000
AREF T
(restated)
(&%)

16,256
16,213



The Group is mainly exposed to HKD and USD currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2013: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2013: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates.

A negative number below indicates decrease in post-tax
profit or increase in post-tax loss for the years where the
functional currency strengthens 5% (2013: 5%) against the
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening
of functional currency against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
or loss for the year and the balances below would be
positive.

HKD s
usD ETT

AEBITEEHEEREITZEBR

o

TREFVAREEREARE S ABEINEF
B NBZES5% (20134 : 5% ) 7 B
f€°5% (2013 : 5% ) BN EEH £ E
EIEABMEINERBFTREZSRE
PR MREREEBEEYIERAGERES
&) 2 7 BMBE DT E B IR AIMNE FF
HrHMAFEERBIEER  WARREHR
FAREELBURBRIINEIER 25%
(2013%F : 5% ) & &) -

T 5B BUR R W T e & AR RE SN A
fB5% (20135 :5% ) FT&EHM 2 FEH
% MR D ek B R TR IE 0 o W AE E
ke H BN B ES% (20134 ¢
5%)  BeHWFEERENSELER
FEMUTERAAEHK-

2013
RMB’000
AREF T
(restated)
(&%)

(610)
(608)



As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. The Group's trading terms with its industrial
customers in piped gas are mainly on credit, while
commercial and household customers are normally required
to pay in advance. The normal credit period is generally
for a period of 30 days to 90 days and extending up
to 180 days for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are disclosed in note 26.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in the PRC or banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect
of loan receivable from a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary of RMB10,000,000 (2013: nil). During the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Group received interest income
of RMB258,000 and recognised as other income. In view
of the timely interest repayment, in the opinion of the
directors, the credit risk in respect to the loan receivable is
not significant.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is in the PRC, which accounted for 100% (2013:
100%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 March 2014.
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In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains the level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flow. The management manages liquidity risk
by monitoring adequate reserves, banking facilities by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s business,
the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient cash and
credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and bank
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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Weighted
average Within
effective  one year

interest oron Within the
rate demand second year
mE
Py -ER

ERAZ SIREXH  E-ER
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR

At 31 March 2014 #201453A318
Trade and other payables B REMENTE
Amount due to a non-controlling EN—TAMBARFER

interest of a subsidiary BRNE
Amount due to a former director R —2RESHE
Bank borrowings RITEE
At 31 March 2013 (restated) 12013€3A31H

(& =5])

Trade and other payables B RAMENTE = 34,754 =
Amount due to a director R —%EZHE 7.05% 3,413 3,500
Bank borrowings BITRE 6.77% 26,729 -

64,896 3,500

The fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of current financial assets and current financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair value.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments are set out in note 41.

Within the
third year

£=Fh
RMB'000
ARETT

3,500

3,500

Total
Within the  Within the Over undiscounted  Carrying
fourth year ~ fifth year five years cash flow  amount
REB
REME

FRER  FIER  BARF #E  REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTL ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR

= = = 34,754 34,754
3,500 3,500 14,000 31,413 24,094
= = = 26,729 26,000

3,500 3,500 14,000 92,896 84,848
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Revenue represents the net amounts received or receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of
the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

WASBEMBITIN R EEEERBERR A
BEBBRETZEEERKERHERBE K
W FBFE - AEEAFEZRAD
iR UENE

2013

RMB'000

ARBEFT

(restated)

(E75)

Provision of piped gas HEEBEMRR 337,457
Gas connection construction contracts lff?&ﬂhz BREEEH 76,630
Transportation, distribution and retail of LPG B DEEZTERER 353,546
Commission income from welfare lottery sales BRATEHEE 2B WRA 1,823
769,456

Information reported to the Group's chief operating decision
maker (“CODM"), being the managing directors of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods sold or services
rendered which is also consistent with the basis of organisation of
the Group.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

(1) Provision of piped gas — construction of gas pipeline
networks and provision of piped gas;

(2) Transportation, distribution and retail of LPG — the sale of
LPG in bulk to wholesale customers and the retail of LPG to
end user households, industrial and commercial customers;
and

(3) Lottery agency — agent to operate and sales of welfare
lottery tickets.

MASEEFTEEERKE ([EBLEERR
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The segment information was re-presented upon the application
of HKFRS 11 which results in exclusion of joint ventures’ from the
reportable and operating segments. Previously the joint ventures’
income, certain expenses, assets and liabilities were included
in the measure of segment revenue, segment results, segment
assets and segment liabilities, respectively. Certain comparative
figures of segment information have been restated.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Segment revenue from REIIBEFH
external customers 2 EBUEA
Segment profit (loss) DEEA (EE)
Unallocated income KA EUA
Central administration costs RRITE A X
Share of results of associates JE(RBEE N RIS

Share of results of joint ventures B A B BEFEE
Share-based payment expense PARR 0 A A HE By

RFAX
Finance costs BB AR

Profit before tax B B4 A s A

E’:\ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ\f’éﬁﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬁﬂ FI1SRIE - DaFE
HERBEFHZ2) BHRAELEREREE
BN - ZﬁfAémﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁzﬂk =T 5
S‘Z BERBEDHIIADREA D EBE

E-DHBEMDHABHE -BFTHRBEH

ZTttﬁ%z%E%&@ilJ
UNTAAEERERREES DB ZIWRA
MEEDHNT -

BZE2014F3A3MBLLFEE



For the year ended 31 March 2013 (restated)

Provision
of piped gas
HESEBEMNRT
RMB'000
AREF T
Segment revenue from REINEBEF K
external customers 7 ZBUA 414,087
Segment profit (loss) DEb N (EE) 59,679
Unallocated income RO A
Central administration costs AR SR 1T B R 2
Gain on bargain purchase of I g — B E ARl 2
acquisition of an associate = BB

Share of results of associates EhEE AR ER
Share of results of joint ventures fE(G A& B E4E
Finance costs B 75 B 7R

Loss before tax BRELATE 1B

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers and no inter-segment sales are noted for current and
prior years.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of share of results of associates,
share of results of joint ventures, share-based payment expense,
gain on bargain purchase of acquisition of an associate, central
administration costs and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

HE2013F3A31HIEFE (KE5)

Transportation,

distribution
and retail Lottery
of LPG agency Total
B DiH R
ZERIER PERE A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT ARBTT
353,546 1,823 769,456
17,495 (626,329) (549,155)
16,106
(28,469)
22,330
6,548
71,188
(2,763)
(464,215)
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The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segments.

Segment assets

Provision of piped gas

Transportation, distribution and retail of LPG
Lottery agency

Total segment assets
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investments
Bank balances and cash
Unallocated assets

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Provision of piped gas

Transportation, distribution and retail of LPG
Lottery agency

Total segment liabilities
Bank borrowings

Tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

SE=NEBIRI

DEEERE
BEWE
NN P
REEBREZ R
AEHERE
WITHEBR AR S

5 AR
B0 EEM

B S WREERILS
WRRE

DESREARE
RITEE
HMIRAE
ELERARE
ANEEE

E>

ARf

mh

§

AT RAEEZEREELED MO B LEE

2013
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(geE7)

333,959
139,368
83,070

556,397
14,200
97,677

408,017

6,990

258,520

24,048

1,365,849

107,259
23,489
25,377

156,125
26,000
35,101

4,532
2,459

224,217



For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

investment properties,

interests in associates,

interests in

joint ventures, available-for-sale investments, bank balances
and cash, certain property, plant and equipment and other

receivables; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
tax liabilities, bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and

certain other payables.

For the year ended 31 March
BEANALEE

Amounts included in measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Net (reversal of allowances) allowances charged
in respect of trade receivables

Write down of inventories

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Fair value change of contingent consideration

Loss on drecognition of compensation receivable

Capital expenditure in respect of prepaid lease
payments

Capital expenditure in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Amounts regularly provided to
the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Gain on bargain purchase of
acquisition of an associate

AEABENIE RS
AHEERTRZER:
n% RERARNE
HENZ HERZELER
REEAES
ﬁ%ﬂﬁgﬁ
BRRNTEL (B
it /?%E
BEi
EREEER NERR
EREVAERD AERR

e

REVENTRE T i
RERR
IRREZORER
Eguﬁzﬁﬁé?ﬁfﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
EBREARS AR

BENE BERREZ
BRI

EHREFTREBRRE
EEABENTERY
PHEERYEHRZ
£

RBEARESR

RARALKER

EERENARE

oy 5

YR -RBE AR
EELE L

Provision of
piped gas

HEEERT
2013
RMB'000
ARETT
(restated)
(&=3)

11,904
234
275

1,37
1,145
172

1,121

2,719

34,858

Transportation,
distribution
and retail of LPG
BB S8R
BERLR
2013
RMB'000
ARETT
(restated)
(=75

3,464

159

3014

RITEEED

s KBEREME R

PERIAEN D EE D EEIR

V& QRS NEE

ﬁ%%”\ : EH HERE RITAERKR
RBe &TYE BERREARER
RIEIN MEEEBE IR TRRED
B &

e KRUNBEBE RTEE BEEREAR
METHEMEMKIEIN MEAEBHEE
DHFRELLEDSEL

Lottery agency Unallocated Total
FERE B ait
2013 2013 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&E=30) (&=30) (&E=30)
1,478 2,346 19,192
- - 238
4 - 476
31,962 - 33333
- - 1,145
- - 172
32,585 - 32,585
593,881 - 601,608
4,266 - 4,266
(60,000) - (60,000)
5,000 - 7,79
3,075 4 40,988
- 97,677 97,677
- 408,017 408,017
- (6,548) (6,548)
- (71,188) (71,188)
- (22,330) (22,330)



The Group's business is principally carried out in the PRC and the
Group's non-current assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly,

no geographical information is presented.

None of the customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

¥to

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &2 - BE M& 2 EHi8

Fair value change of investment properties

Net foreign exchange loss

Gain on bargain purchase of acquisition of
an associate (note 22)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill (note 20)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets (note 21)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment (note a)

Net reversal of allowances (allowances charged)
in respect of trade receivables (note 26)

Fair value change of contingent consideration
(note b)

RAMEL DA B
B 34 A1 8 4

U BE — B 8 R R) 2 s B R BB U 2
(FfFzE22)

HEBERZRAERE
(FHzE20)

REFEEERZMEEISE
(FzE21)

HUE BB REEER
BEEE (MEa)

B RWHIBR B BERE
(FHiR%E) 75 (KHisE26)

KARBZAREES
(FfsEb)

Loss on derecognition of compensation receivable J& U8 & &R - 1R 2 &8

(note b)

(FfsEb)

ARBEBETERNTBRETMASEIER
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2013
RMB’000

ARBTT

(restated)
(=E751)

(238)

6

(256)
22,330
(32,585)
(601,608)
(4,266)

(1,145)

60,000

(557,762)



Notes:

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the directors of the Company
conducted an impairment review of the Group's property, plant and
equipment relating to the lottery agency business. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets have been determined on the basis
of the value in use calculation of the lottery agency business.
Value in use calculation was carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited
(“Asset Appraisal”), an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group whose address is Room 802, On
Hong Commercial Building, 145 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The value in use calculation was determined based on the
financial budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering a 5-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.86%.
The cash flows beyond the next five years are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 3.00% which does not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Accordingly, impairment
loss of RMB4,266,000 of property, plant and equipment which were
used in the Group’s operation of lottery agency business, had been
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2013. Detail movement
of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 17.

On 13 June 2011, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Yongheng Development Corporation Limited
("Yongheng Development”) for the acquisition of 100% equity
interest of Grand Destiny Group Limited (“Grand Destiny”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Target Group”). Pursuant
to the agreement, Yongheng Development guaranteed to the
Company that the net profit of Target Group as shown in the
audited consolidated financial statement of Target Group for the
period from the date of acquisition of 1 September 2011 to 31
March 2013 should be not less than RMB60,000,000 (the “Profit
Guarantee”). Yongheng Development would compensate the
Company for any shortfall between the Profit Guarantee and the
net profit as shown in the audited consolidated financial statements
of Target Group but is subject to a cap amount of RMB60,000.000.

Accordingly, when the Target Group suffered a net loss of
RMB68,910,000 during the period from 1 September 2011 to
31 March 2013, the Group recognised RMB60,000,000 as fair
value change of contingent consideration in profit or loss, which
represented compensation receivable from Yongheng Development
as at 31 March 2013. The amount was secured by 297,654,321
shares of the Company owned by Yongheng Development (“Share
Charge”). Such Share Charge shall be released upon the settlement
of the compensation receivable of RMB60,000,000.
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Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

On 8 April 2013, the Company and Yongheng Development
entered into a settlement deed as well as a supplemental
settlement deed on 16 May 2013 (collectively referred to as
“Settlement Deed”). Pursuant to the Settlement Deed, (i) the
security created by the Share Charge shall be discharged and
released in the manner provided in the release; (i) the Company
shall waive the compliance by Yongheng Development of its
obligations under the agreement dated 13 June 2011 in respect
of the acquisition of the sale share in relation to the Profit
Guarantee in the manner provided in the release; (iii) Yongheng
Development and the Company shall jointly appoint an escrow
agent to hold and deal with the Company’s 1,727,729,582 shares
owned by Yongheng Development (“Consideration Shares”) in
accordance with the terms of the escrow letter; and (iv) Yongheng
Development shall deposit the Consideration Shares and other
related title and other documents as provided in the escrow
letter with the escrow agent immediately after the signing of the
release and the escrow letter; and (v) the Consideration Shares
shall be held and dealt with by the escrow agent in accordance
with the settlement arrangement as stipulated in the Settlement
Deed. Further details of the Settlement Deed were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 8 July 2013. The Settlement Deed was
then approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
in a special general meeting held on 24 July 2013. Upon the time
when such waiver becomes effective, the compensation receivable
of RMB60,000,000 was derecognised and resulting a loss in profit
or loss.
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Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Settlement Deed, the Company and Yongheng
Development agreed to jointly appoint an independent valuer, as
nominated by the Company, to conduct a valuation of Target Group
as of 31 March 2014 (“2014 Valuation”) and compare to the fair
value of Target Group as of 31 March 2013 of RMB65,667,000
(“2013 Valuation”). If the 2014 Valuation is higher than 2013
Valuation, the Consideration Shares should be held by the escrow
agent until a valuation of Target Group as at 31 March 2015 is
determined. If the 2014 Valuation is lower than 2013 Valuation,
the Company and Yongheng Development should jointly procure
a placing agent to dispose of the Consideration Shares on the
best effort basis, within six months after the date of announcing
the 2014 Valuation, i.e. from 30 April 2014 to 31 October 2014
(“2014 Placing Period”). The escrow agent shall then release and
transfer such number of Consideration Shares successfully placed
by the placing agent which are held in the escrow of the escrow
agent to the placees. Based on the valuation report of 2014
Valuation subsequently completed at 30 April 2014, the 2014
Valuation is RMB31,920,000, which is lower than 2013 Valuation.
Accordingly, the Company and Yongheng Development had further
agreed to place the Consideration Shares to independent third
parties upon the placing agreement entered subsequently on 30
April 2014. Details of placing agreement are disclosed in note 42.
The proceeds from the placing should be paid to the Company
after the completion of the placing. Should the placing agent fail
to place all of the 1,727,729,582 Consideration Shares during the
2014 Placing Period, the escrow agent shall release and transfer the
remaining Consideration Shares which are held in the escrow of the
escrow agent to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company at the close of business on the last
day of the 2014 Placing Period (other than Yongheng Development)
on a pro-rata basis. As the placing agreement was lapsed on
21 May 2014, no financial impact is recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014. Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issuance, the directors of the Company are
still seeking placing opportunity to placees within the 2014 Placing
Period.
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(b)
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Bank interest income

Dividend income from
an available-for-sale investment

Income from available-for-sale investments
(note 22)

Interest income from loan to
a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
(note 26)

Rental income

Sales of gas appliance, net

Storage management fee income

Government grant

Others

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Staff costs

Directors’ emoluments (note 12)

Other staff costs
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Share-based payment expense in relation to
warrants issued during the year
(included in administrative expenses)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Write down of inventories
(included in cost of sales and services)
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in administrative expeneses)
Operating lease payments in respect of
rented premises
Contract cost recognised as expense in respect
of gas connection construction contracts
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2013
RMB’000
AREFIT
(restated)
(&=%)

3,541
5
11,300
385
302
4,912
559
1,118

22,122

AEREN (BR)EHMBTIEE:

2013
RMB'000
AR¥T T
(restated)
(&75)

7,996

48,239
6,022

62,257

549,968
172
1,774
19,192
476
33,333
5,133

28,532



The emoluments paid or payable to each of 12 (2013: 11) B EEMN12E (2013F:112)E S
directors and the chief executives were as follows: RITBBE L0 T

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Share-based

Directors’ and benefits scheme  payments Total
fee in kind contributions expense emoluments
URBA

FeoRl BAEA -3
EEHe REWAE  HEBR AFEX aMe
RVMB'O0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR

(note a)
(Hizta)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE201453031BLEE
Executive directors: RITES:
Mr. Xu Ruixin (note b) Bl £ (Mb) = = = = -
Mr. Yang Songsheng BRELE
(“Mr. Yang") (note ¢) (MBRELE]) (Ko = 627 16 = 643
Dr. Mo Shikang ("Dr. Mo") BttEET ([RiE+]) = 1,466 44 25,611 27,121
Mr. Zhang Hesheng KA K E = 1,304 36 = 1,340
Mr. Yeung Paak Ching BESEE
("Mr. Yeung") (note c) (MBEERED (M) = 238 = = 238
Mr. Jin Song (“Mr. Jin") FREE(THEE]) - 853 40 = 893
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus KEREE - 1,285 12 = 1,297
Independent non-executive directors: BUFNTES:
Dr. Liu Junmin AEREL 103 - - = 103
Prof. Zhao Yanyun (note d) HEEHK (fttd) 68 = = = 68
Mr. Tan Qinglian (note e) BEREEE (Hite) - = = = =
Mr. Li Jialin (note e) FmaskE (Fiate) = = = = -
Mr. Sin Ka Man KR 103 - - - 103

274 5,773 148 25,611 31,806



The share-based expense is included in administrative

expenses as disclosed in note 35(b).

Mr. Xu Ruixin retired on 3 September 2013.
Mr. Yang and Mr. Yeung resigned on 1 August 2013.

Prof. Zhao Yanyun was appointed on 24 July 2013.
Mr. Tan Qinglian and Mr. Li Jialin retired on 3 September

2013.

Mr. Li Jialin was appointed on 31 December 2012.

Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors" and benefits scheme Total
fee in kind contributions emoluments
E2 =1 RIAER
EzHe REYIE FTEIHR ame
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZE013F3A31ALEE
Executive directors: WIiES:
Mr. Xu Ruixin REMLE - - = =
Mr. Yang BINEEE - 2,265 20 2,285
Dr. Mo BEL - 1,368 41 1,409
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RAAE KA = 1,334 36 1,370
Mr. Yeung BESEE - 635 - 635
Mr. Jin SEE - 862 39 901
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus KeEEE - 1172 12 1,184
Independent non-executive directors: BUFATES:
Dr. Liu Junmin BB RET 106 = = 106
Mr. Tan Qinglian BEELE - - - -
Mr. Li Jialin (note f) TG AL (KIS - = = =
Mr. Sin Ka Man EREEE 106 - - 106
212 7,636 148 7,996
Notes: B 5

a. AR BERZMNRFEXE ATERA

S (BB HIEE35(b))

b. RIBEFILEENR2013FIA3HRME-

¢ BMELEERBESSKEEN2013F8
B1B&fE-

d.  HWEEHIEN2013F7A24BERT -
B S A R 2 INARSE A p820134F9
A3BRE-

f. AR S £ 2012961231 B EE

(Ea



For the year ended 31 March 2013, Mr. Yeung and Mr. Jin
were the joint chief executives of the Company and their
emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by them as the co-held chief executives. Mr. Yeung
resigned as executive director on 1 August 2013. Mr. Jin
continued to act as the chief executive of the Company.

None of the directors and chief executives waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group. No
emoluments was paid to the directors and chief executives
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four (2013: five) are directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures.
The emolument of the remaining one (2013: nil) individual
is disclosed as follows:

Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind e EMEEYI =
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORE R ET 2] 3R

HE2013F3A31MHILFE BESL
ERFAEBARRNE ZBETHRAS,
AR EXEERE e BIERSEE
R TRBETIRERE ZME 156
HHEAN2013F8 A1 HEENITES -
FEEREETARR ZITHEAE -

B NTHREHBENESRENRET
AAEBINZHE BZE2014F &
2013F3A31HLEFE AR A ER
BEERTHRERIHEAME  EHR
FEEMARNEEIRINALRE FEES 2 48
EhskREBR 18 2 f (8 -

AEB A& HMA LA (2013
F AN REARAES  EMErn t
NEE AT —AL (2013F )AL Z
MemEMT :

2013
RMB’000
AR®ETT



Imputed interest on amount due to
a former director/director (note 30)
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
within five years

PRC Enterprise Income Tax:

— Current tax

— Overprovision in prior years
Deferred taxation (note 32)

2013
RMB'000
ARBFT
(restated)
(&51)

BN —ZEE EEHKAZ

FEEEF B (KMYsE30)
ARAFRNBHEEZ
RITEZRF A

R ZERTIS L
— BNHEAFH 18
—BEFEBERE
EER A (MI5E32)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no assessable

profit derived in Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. Certain PRC group entities
are entitled to the preferential tax rate pursuant to the relevant
regulations applicable to enterprises situated in the western
regions of the PRC. The applicable tax rates of those PRC group
entities were 15% for years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

1,629

1,134

2,763

2013
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(&=51)

18,682
(813)
(156,549)

(138,680)

HRASERZMEFESERAEB ZE
o] & SR Bt Al - BULE I B A AR A I IS R
BEMEGHERERS-

BEFBECZEMERE ([RERBRE]) &
TEMBHEAZERMAR FEMRBARZ
TR A25% - RIBFEAM AP EALLbEZ
CEZRBER ETHREREEZEE
B E - F2014F %2013F3A318 IEF
B ZETREEEREZERHERISY% °



The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled meBRn kAN EEBAREKRZEN (FE)
to the profit (loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of HAFEZFERAS (KL) HERMAT
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2013
RMB'000
AREF T
(restated)
(&51)
Profit (loss) before tax B A5 Bilm Al (E518) (464,215)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% BB RNFTERZR25%: 8 2 Fi18 (116,053)
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures ffEAé“m%%ZiZﬁi’z%; (17,797)
Tax effect of share of results of associates Fgfﬁﬂﬁﬁ*é’& T¥Z$Z$R7T% T (1,637)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose B AR U A Z i 75 50 & (23,492)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR H 2
tax purpose mBEE 12,748
Tax effect of profit which are under tax HIBRRIE T m i 2
concessions MG 2 (5,450)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RARTHERBIBBE B E 13,814
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEEE (813)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year RNEFREHAX (E2) (138,680)
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 REE2014F3A31 B IEFE AL E LK
March 2014 (2013: nil), nor has any dividend has been proposed BEXARE (2013F - &) - B E BRI

since the end of the reporting period (2013: nil).

RIFEEZ AR (20135 &) -



The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (loss) BR (EE)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to

owners of the Company (E8E)

Number of shares RGO E
Number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year for the purpose of basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per share calculation 2B

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the computation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s warrants because the exercise price of those warrants
was higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares. In addition, the computation of diluted earnings per share
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options before they were lapsed during the year ended 31
March 2014, as their exercise prices were higher than the average
market price of the Company’s shares for the year prior to lapse.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the computation of diluted
loss per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

ARBEAANRESRERRTN (EIE) IR
BATEBEE

2013
RMB’000
ARETT

RRBHA ARG FEE

(335,415)

2013

AAESREAREG AT
(BER)ZFRABTEBKR

5,809,954,136

HE2014F3A3MBIULFE  GREERN 2
AEVEBRRITEARFRZARER BAA
ZERREBZ2TEESRARRIRG 2F
HHE - N BREERF 25 E W ERBR
AR ZHARITHEEREREERZE20145F
38318 IEFEERRRATETF - AR A
ZAZEBREZITEERSREANRR R
BZFHmE-

HZE2013F3A318ILFE SREEEE 2
STEWEBRRARRZ MAITEEREET
F AAEEZTHEBERSREERRD -



cosT

At 1 April 2012
(restated)

Additions

Transfer

Transfer to investment
properties (note 18)

Disposals/written off

At 31 March 2013
(restated)

Acquisition of assets

through acquisition of
a subsidiary (note 34)

Additions

Capital injection from

a non-controlling

interest of a subsidiary,

at fair value
Transfer
Disposals/written off

At 31 March 2014

DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2012
(restated)

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

recognised in profit or

|oss (note 9a)

Eliminated on disposals/

written off

At 31 March 2013
(restated)

Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals/

written off
At 31 March 2014

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013
(restated)
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RERAE

201264 A18
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AEERE
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BEER
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12013E3A318
(mE3))
REERME

L E B
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12014E3A318

RHE
12014%3A318

12013%3A318
(E7)

Leasehold

Buildings improvements

BY HENERE

RMB'000
ARBFTL

46,758
1,203
4,632

(694)

51,899

2,157
4,247

18,311
307

77,521

7,810
1,470

9,280
1,951

11,231

66,290

42,619

RMB'000
ARETR

5,088
1,843

(281)
8,062

1,982
758

3,325

6,065
400
(164)

6,301

Furniture,
fixtures

and office
equipment
5 EER
WAERE
RMB'000
ARETTL

6,624
1,422
107

(209)

7,944
1,632

162
(449)

9,302

3,682
858

902
(200)

5242

(376)
5576

3,726

2,702

Plant,
machinery
and pipeline
BE Ha
RkEE
RMB'000
ARETT

286,185
7,494
13,723

(296)

307,106

2,270
9,380

30,495
34,370
(361)

383,260

102,846
10,569

125,380

257,880

193,754

Transportation
vehicles

L EL ]
RMB'000
ARBTR

64,307
4,216

1)

67,306

255
2,406

(588)
69,879

18,307
5,537
39
(709)

23,174
5,851

(460)
28,565

Construction
in progress

ERIR
RMB'000
ARBFTL

31,079
24,810
(18,462)

37,427
57,657

(34,839)

60,245

60,245

37,427

Total

A
RMB'000
ARBTR

440,041
40,988

(694)
(1222)

479,113

5,295
76,734

48,806

(1,679)
608,269

322,000



The Group has pledged certain property, plant and equipment
with carrying value of RMB1,849,000 (2013: RMB7,073,000) to
secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 40.

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of 40 years or
the remaining terms of leases

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the terms of
the leases, or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%

office equipment
Plant, machinery and pipeline  3.3% — 20%
Transportation vehicles 12.5% — 20%

The buildings are situated in the PRC, and are for own use under
medium-term lease.

AEBEEFEREEARY,849,0007T
(201345 : AR#7,073,0007T) 2 & T4% -
WEREEAMEAR TE TRITEE 2 &R
(HERMEEL0) o

Ed¥x BERREEB (FEZITRERINTG
MESER NI FRITE

BF A0F S F 4 TH & F H
(ABIEE A%E)

HEWMERE TS PR 85 (AERE
B L)

R EER 20%

MRERME

BE HEREE 3.3%-20%

12 1) ° o 12.5% - 20%

ZEEFUNTEMBREFPHEERFER

}Eﬁo

RMB’000
ARMET T

FAIR VALUE A RE
At 1 April 2012 (restated) 201264818 (KE7) 13,500
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss REEERZARBEED 6
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 17) EEAWE - WE RE&E (HE17) 694
At 31 March 2013 (restated) MR2013F3A31H (KLEF) 14,200
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss REEERZ AR BEED (220)
At 31 March 2014 201443 A31H 13,980

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC, and are
held under medium-term leases.

FREEMERURFPE XRIEFRAEHER
5o



The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 March
2014 and 2013 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by Asset Appraisal. Asset
Appraisal is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
and has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 March
2014 and 2013 were determined based on direct comparison
method and making references to comparable market observable
transactions of similar properties in the nearby locations as
available in the relevant market. There has been no change from
the valuation technique used in the prior year.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

R2014%F X2013F3A31H  AEFHIKEY
EZARBENREPFENEMEEREB BT
TZHEBLH RHETELABBNEME
grves TAHEBEERENOHEEH
B B EETEE SR -

R20144%F K2013F3A31H AEE 2K E
MEZAABEREEEZELRLAEELHLE
WIS A 2RIt B 2 B 2
A BRMEIEER S - AFMERZ
HERMT I EEEE (-

AEBMANKERERAREURIES
WAREEREER R ZMERZENRAR
EEAE XD ELAREMEAR-



Details of the Group's investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2014, are as

follows:

Carrying value of
investment properties

RENEZERER

Commercial properties in the PRC -
RMB13,980,000

NP3 S
AR 13,980,007

Fair value
hierarchy
DRAEER

Level 3

E=R

Valuation
techniques

fhERE

Direct comparison method
based on market observable
transactions of similar
properties

The key inputs are:
(1) Price per square meter

(2) Level adjustment

ERUEE
RERENE
HmSTRERS

B3 VN {
(1) BFITKER

(2) EEHRE

TE]

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

REBER2014F3A3TB 2 REMEFHB R
DNABEEBRZERFHNMT

Relationship of
Significant unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs to fair value
EXTUBRBRARE RMETTBRBARB 2 BE

Price per square metre, based  The higher the price per square
on gross floor area using metre, the higher the fair
direct market comparables value
and taking into account of
location and individual factors
such as size of property and
facilities

The higher the level adjustment,
the lower the fair value

Level adjustment in individual
floor of the property

BYHERENERDSALE BTHIRERER RAGHR
MEEAER Y RUER
(EGIEES I/ EININE

HNFERIBEZHE BESS RAEME

FARBEBARBEHE=RH-



The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold lands in the PRC under medium term

leases AE L
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RRHBBE DT

Current portion BN EAEE 5

Non-current portion FEBNHAER 3

The leasehold lands are released to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of leases.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group acquired a land
of RMB4,564,000 through acquisition of a subsidiary. Details of
the acquisition are set out in note 34.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there is an addition of
prepaid lease payment of RMB6,096,000 at fair value as capital
injection by a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of the
Company.

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
amounting to RMB8&,005,000 (2013: RMB8,208,000) were
pledged to secure the Group’s certain bank borrowings, as
disclosed in note 40.

AEEBZENESERE

2013
RMB'000
ARBFT
(restated)
(&51)

RPBEREFHEEREZ

23,595
456
23,139

23,595

HELHMAEREEZERAEE SR AR

B

HE2014F3A31HILFE - AEEFBUEE
— B B R R EE A R#4,564,00070.2 — 1R
T o iR W BE 2 R IBH SR KT 5E34 -

HE2014F3A31HIEFE - AR F)—FEHB
NE R ER T EF RN ES R ARE
it=2A AR%6,096,0007T

M2014F3A31 8 AEEZENESHAR
#8,005,0007T (20134 : A R #8,208,000
TLE THEBIEAR TAEESE THRITEE
ZER (B FTERKTEE40) ©



RMB’000

ARET T
COST KA
At 1 April 2012 (restated), 31 March 2013 (restated) R2012F4 818 (£7%])  R20134F
and 31 March 2014 3A31H (&%) R18201443H31H 39,650
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSS RitREEE
At 1 April 2012 M201264H18 =
Impairment loss recognised B R E &8 32,585
At 31 March 2013 (restated) and 31 March 2014 M201343H318 (&%) &
120143 A31H 32,585
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2013 (restated) and 31 March 2014 M2013FE3A318 (FF)) &
M20149E3831H 7,065

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and
in the financial year in which the acquisition takes place, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out above
has been allocated to two (2013: two) individual CGUs, in
which the management considered each subsidiary represents a
separate CGU. At the end of the reporting period, the cost of
goodwill represents goodwill of RMB32,585,000 arising from
the acquisition of Grand Destiny for lottery agency business and
RMB7,065,000 arising from the acquisition of Yunnan Civigas
Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Civigas") for transportation, distribution and
retail of LPG.

AEESE RN R R ARE
BRME SHETRERERT L RE 8
FRTRTAR

AETREISR iR ECHEERE
Q013F M) BN eELAEN BIEE
REWBRARNRE —EBILRSELEEN-
RBEHR BEZEAEREAVEREE
U R FE AR E32,585,0007T & A K AE
B OHEETERCREEREZSETRM
REBRAF ([EEHR]) ARET,065,000
TLEAZEE-



Regarding the CGU of Yunnan Civigas, the recoverable amount
of the CGU is determined based on value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
a 5-year period and pre-tax discount rate of 14%. The cash
flows for the financial budgets are using a steady growth rate
of 2% for a 5-year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year
period are extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budget sales
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. For years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, there
was no impairment recognised in profit or loss on goodwill
amounting to RMB 7,065,000 in respect of the CGU of Yunnan
Civigas.

Regarding to the CGU of Grand Destiny, the recoverable amount
of the CGU was determined based on value in use calculation.
The value in use calculation was conducted by Asset Appraisal
based on the financial budgets approved by the management of
the Group covering a 5-year period and a pre-tax discount rate
of 15.86%. The cash flows for the financial budgets were using
a steady growth rate of 2% for a 5-year period. The cash flows
beyond this 5-year period were extrapolated using an estimated
growth rate of 3% which did not exceed the long-term growth
rate of the relevant industry. However, the actual revenue derived
from the CGU during the year ended 31 March 2013 was lower
than it was projected, as such the future estimated cash inflow
was revised downward accordingly by the management of the
Group. The directors of the Company determined that the whole
amount of goodwill of RMB32,585,000 arisen from this CGU
was impaired and recognised as impairment loss in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

NEMPRZESCELEUMS  REEL
Bz ke EIRIEEREEEmE
TE o iZaT EIRAER AN EEE IR E AL R ES
FHHEVRBEE 2R REEE - R AT
BRI4A%ET B HEE 2R REHRASE
HRZEBEEER2Y% - BBSFHE 2 ES
MERAEREREXELHE - FHEEFTE
ZEMBEBRRIVBRBESHEA S REZMH
I (BEBEEHEREMNE) AT THIRE
MBERZEMNBARRARERERHEMmME
e B E2014F K2013463A31B ILEE &
MARZASELEENUZEHEARE
7,065,000 B RN B R R Z R E -

MEATZRECELEBMNME HEEELEN
2B EEREFTREBAEETE - F
RAEEFEATHETEREAESEERRE
HERESSF MY RBEE K AR X
15.86%E F-MMBHE 2B RESRAF
B2 BT R R2% - BBESFEZHERE
RAMFHERE3.00%EHHEE - T8 L HHR
TEZREIERE AT B 22013F3A31
AEtEEERSELABNEA ZERKAK
RIBAE T - At - RRGEFTHRSMEBASE
EEEEREELIRTHAE - XRRESR
BERESEABNELACZHEZEZHEEA
K #32,585,000;t BERE  LEREZE
2013F3A3 1A LFERELXERBRER
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Exclusive
rights of
purchase
BXEBEEFR
RMB'000
ARET T
COST R A
At 1 April 2012 (restated), 720129 4H1H
31 March 2013 (restated),  (ZE%) 20134
and 31 March 2014 3A31H (&%)
201453 A31H 10,000
ACCUMULATED R BER
AMORTISATION AND HEEE
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 April 2012 R201264H1H
(restated) (&E75) 1,818
Charge for the year NE EHBR 455
Impairment loss recognised & #& 528 {E &5 12 7,727
At 31 March 2013 M20134F3A31H
(restated) (&%) 10,000
Charge for the year RNEZE MR =
At 31 March 2014 M2014F3H31H 10,000
CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 March 2014 201453 H31H

2013F3H31H
(E5)

At 31 March 2013
(restated)

Exclusive Exclusive
rights of rights of
operations of  operation of
piped gas lottery sales Total
BREERR BRERHE
REER RERER a&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTTT
27,500 639,226 676,726
5,349 13,384 20,551
917 31,961 33,333
- 593,881 601,608
6,266 639,226 655,492
917 = 917
7,183 639,226 656,409
20,317 - 20,317
21,234 — 21,234

The exclusive rights of purchase was acquired separately while
the exclusive rights of operation of piped gas, and exclusive rights
of operation of lottery sales were acquired from third parties in
business combinations. The above intangible assets have definite
useful live. Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the following periods:

Exclusive rights of purchase
Exclusive rights of operation of piped gas
Exclusive rights of operation of lottery sales

20 to 25 years
30 years
20 years

BRRBEREMNEEBRE MBREEMR
RERNEBRERHEEREEN TN ER
ABHFEF=TWE - LB EERIETE
AERFEH ZEELEEN T BEZE
ARG -

BREEER 20F 254
BREBMRAICERER 304
BREEHELEERER 204



Exclusive rights of purchase represented the rights of purchase
of natural gas explored in Yanji Basin, which is located in the
eastern part of lJilin Province. For the year ended 31 March
2013, the directors of the Company conducted an impairment
review on the CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU was
determined based on value in use calculation. That calculation
was determined based on the financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering a 5-year period and a pre-
tax discount rate of 19.42%. The cash flows for the financial
budgets were using a steady growth rate of 1.98% for a 5-year
period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period are extrapolated
using a zero percent growth rate. However, the actual revenue
derived from the CGU during the year ended 31 March 2013 was
lower than it was projected, as such the future estimated cash
inflow was revised downward accordingly by the management
of the Group. The directors of the Company determined that
the intangible assets arisen from the CGU were impaired and an
impairment loss of RMB7,727,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Exclusive rights of operation of piped gas represented the rights
to operate in gas pipeline infrastructure and provision of piped
gas granted by local government in various cities in the PRC. The
directors of the Company conducted an impairment review on
the CGU for purposes of impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of the CGU was determined based on value in use
calculation. That calculation was determined based on the
financial budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering a 5-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 19.42%.
The cash flows for the financial budgets were using a steady
growth rate of 2% for a 5-year period. The cash flows beyond
this 5-year period are extrapolated using a zero percent growth
rate. For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, there was no
impairment recognised in profit or loss on the exclusive rights of
operation of piped gas.

BREBEFEFBEN ST ME EITEH A
FEZ RARZHEF - & F2013F3A831H Lt
FE ARAEECOHREEESBMETR
BEEE-ReELEBMNZAI KRB S BERE
REEFEET % i EERAEEERE
AR Z S5 BB 2 B TR & & B AT B 3R XK
1902%EFE -HHREE 2R REHF BT
B 2 BT R E1.98% - HBBSF R 217
CHRERATHEREFLHEZE -Am HE
2013F3A3 B EFEERSELEEMNEE
Z BB ARRIE ST - It - RREFHR
EHREAAEEEEEHREEIATAR.
ARRESEBTARSELENEEZENR
BEADRE MEEEEARE7?,727,000
TEREZE2013F3A31HILFEHFEIEZRE

A °

BREBMRRCEEFIEEPREFTHMZ
T BT IR A& R B B B Rk e IR
EEMIBZER - BETRERNR  ARRE
EERBCELEBNETRERE - RBEE
ANz KRB BEENEREBRNEE
TE o %At B E AN K B E 1R E #HE W ES5F 5
Mz BEE RFRIAA IR E19.42%EE B
BRBEZRERERASFHEZBEEE
2% - BBSFHEZRERERATHEER
KRUEH HEE - B 220144 K20139F3A31H
IFEBREEMRECERMNBEREBERS
HER A



Exclusive rights of operation of lottery sales represented the
license of operating lottery agency business in Shenzhen. The
Group acts as sole agent of Shenzhen Welfare Lottery Issuing
Centre to distribute Keno Games Lottery in Shenzhen. The
directors of the Company conducted an impairment review of
the Group’s lottery agency business which is detailed in note 20.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company determined that the
exclusive rights of operation of lottery sales were impaired and an
impairment loss of RMB593,881,000 was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2013.

On 25 March 2011, Beijing Zhonglian Huaan Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Zhonglian Huaan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 49.9%
equity interest in Southwest Panva through a bid auction at a
consideration of RMB35,000,000. The transaction was completed
on 8 October 2011. At the same day, Zhonglian Huaan entered
into an equity management contract with a PRC company (the
“Manager”), an independent third party of the Group, for the
management of the 49.9% equity interest in Southwest Panva
for one year period started from 8 October 2011. During the
management period, the Group has no significant influence nor
control over Southwest Panva, and the share of distributable
profit or loss from Southwest Panva was attributable to
the Manager whereas the Group received a fixed return of
RMB8,600,000 which was recognised as other income during the
year ended 31 March 2013. Accordingly, the investment cost of
RMB35,000,000 was recognised as available-for-sale investments
during the year ended 31 March 2012.

Upon the end of the management period on 7 October 2012,
Zhonglian Huaan was entitled to having significant influence
in Southwest Panva. The fair value of total assets and liabilities
of Southwest Panva attributable to the Group's interest therein
amounting to RMB57,330,000 on 7 October 2012 is used for
subsequent equity accounting under interests in associates.
Accordingly, a gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of an
associate amounted to RMB22,330,000 was recognised by
comparing the Group’s attributable share of fair value of net
assets and the carrying value of Southwest Panva as at 7 October
2012.

BRERHELERNNPBRNMEEFR
SEREXB2HR - AKERARYITENFE
RBRITP ORI O H [REF | ERAET
FRZE-—RE-ARFEFERAEEF
EREXKETRERS FRME20-
o ARREZEEBRLRHELEER
ZEVEEREHRE MBAEBEARSE
593,881,0007C B RN E E2013F3 A31H I
EHEESTER -

MR2011F3A258 KRRz EH B A AL
RARBEZIREARAR ([HREER )R]
BEEWE  ERSEHERER IAE49.9%
A& - (B A AR #35,000,0007C ° 2R 5B
R2011F1088A5EMK R B - P EEEZL B —
MHAEAR ([FEAl) (REEZBIFE=
FIFTUBREEEAYN UEEBIAM
49.9%R%#E - 201110 ASH M AH—
FoNBEIBEEAAN AEEH B IAEMESE
AFEBNSIESE MAOEEIRABZA D
KgAK EEENEIE A  mASE B WEE
TE @3 A R#8,600,00070 2 BNEHE
2013F3 A3 1A L FEEERASEMUA -
bt B E2012F3A31 B IEFE  RERAA
R ¥#35,000,000 T ERER AR EERE -

R2012F 1078 B HE AL P EL
HEIAEEEARTE N -M20129F10A7
A AEEEZEEE IAESEENEER
52N EARBS7,330,0007T R BEE A
AR N BB gRE - B WiE—
MBE AR zaBREZKZARE
22,330,0007TE E BB AE B K20129 10
A7TBEERMNEIAE EEFECARERK
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On 9 June 2011, Zhonglian Huaan entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 20.12% of equity interest in
Yunnan Panva through a bid auction, at a consideration of
RMB26,000,000. The transaction was completed on 17 February
2012. At the same day, Zhonglian Huaan entered into an equity
management contract with Manager, for the management of
the 20.12% equity interest in Yunnan Panva for one year period
started from 17 February 2012. During the management period,
the Group has no significant influence nor control over Yunnan
Panva, and the share of distributable profit or loss from Yunnan
Panva was attributable to the Manager whereas the Group
received a fixed return of RMB2,700,000, which was recognised
as other income during the year ended 31 March 2013. The
investment cost of RMB26,000,000 was recognised as available-
for-sale investments during the year ended 31 March 2012.

Upon the end of the management period on 16 February 2013,
Zhonglian Huaan was entitled to have 20.12% equity interests in
Yunnan Panva. Together with 28.41% effective equity interests
held through Southwest Panva which holds 56.94% direct
interest in Yunnan Panva, the Group had 48.53% effective
interests in aggregate and had significant influence in Yunnan
Panva. The fair value of total assets and liabilities of Yunnan
Panva attributable to the Group’s interest therein amounting to
RMB22,299,000 on 16 February 2013 is used for subsequent
equity accounting under interests in associates.

Cost of unlisted investment JEETIREH AR

Bargain purchase gain = BUE W E

Share of post-acquisition profits and DE M EE R E T &
other comprehensive income, Hip 2wk A

net of dividends received

JRE Ui — Fi] Bt

Amount due from an associate

(FNBRE WER 2 I 8.)

NCIE /S

R2011F6A9H R EZEI VB & Hak

BRIEHEWEERHT20.12% 2 &4
REAAR®26,000,000T°ZXHE R
201282 178 Bk - A B PG E L EHEE
AT BREEBEAN UEBEREFEAT
20.12%0%#E - 820122 A 178 #£ A H —
FoNBEEBEAN AEEHEEAIHESE

AREENSEFE MOBEERALZAND

KaF sk EEEREEA A% B KEE
FEER AR 700,000 X2 BRESE
20135331 H L FEEERASEAMUA - &
F2012F3A31BEFE HEKNAEARK
26,000,000 T EER BRI HHERE -

MR2013F2 16 HERHMTE R  PHER
HEEBAT20.12%KRE - ERFEBBITA
BM(EAEEFMALZS694%HERR)EAR
22841 % BHE  AEERERMBE LA
HHAS53%ME THEEAFE N K
201352 H16R0  ASEEXEEERELE
EXBERTE 2 A REARE22,299,0007T

ANVIN
ARBENm A N EREREIA-

2013
RMB’000
AREF T
(restated)
(&%)

68,799
22,330

6,548

97,677



As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group had interests in the

following significant associates:

Name of company

DEER

Southwest Panva
BIIAE

Yunnan Panva
EHEIL

Form of business
structure

FERBEA

Limited liability company
ABREERF

Limited liability company
BREEAA

Place of
establishment
and operation

RIK
REFER

PRC
P E

PRC
FE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. All of these
associates are accounted for using the equity method in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to owners of Southwest Panva

Non-controlling interests

MENEE
FRBEE
mEAE
BEFE

BT HEA AEHED

FEFRRHE 21

20144 N2013F3A31H ZEER T 5
TEBENRHEAER

Proportion
of nominal
value of registered
capital held
by the Group Principal activities
rEBRERRZ
EfE R 2 EEL A TEEH
2013
49.9% Transportation,
distribution and
retail of LPG
W HHERTERIR
48.53% Transportation,
distribution and
retail of LPG
B HHEREERIRA

BRAASEBRLE AR W BEERBES M
T TIHBEHBENY = RRNRER
AR BEREEMNRRZBBERRI RS
B-MAZSEBHERRRBEAESALRE
BZRAMBEHREK -

2013
RMB'000
ARET T
(restated)
(E7)
134,268
97,359
(32,421)

199,206

144,906
54,300

199,206



Period from

7 October
2012 to
31 March
2013
20124
10A78 &
20134
34318 5/
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue WA 170,925
Profit and total comprehensive income T A 2 AFEHRRF R
for the year/period attributable to: EEWABEE:
Owners of Southwest Panva BIAEERA 12,576
Non-controlling interests FE 5 AR 2 5,269
17,845
Dividend received from the associate REE
during the year/period B U A RIIR A -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LB BENMERRB IAMER 2 RE
to the carrying amount of the interest in Southwest Panva BZHEERGETBRERFER:
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2013
RMB'000
AR¥ETTT
(restated)
(E5)
Equity attributable to owners of Southwest Panva & /T P45 A A fE(H S 144,906
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AEERBIAEL
in Southwest Panva at 49.9% B 2
(including 28.41% Group's effective (B1528.41% A %EHE
interest in Yunnan Panva) REEAILZERER) 72,308
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEBRBIAMZ

in Southwest Panva EmZREE 72,308



2013

RMB'000
ARBFT
(restated)
(&51)
Current assets TRENE E 79,856
Non-current assets FERBEE 66,214
Current liabilities mEEE (19,982)
Net assets BEFE 126,088
Period from
16 February
2013 to
31 March
2013
20134
2H16HZE
2013
3831 H IR
RMB'000
AR¥ETTT
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue A 59,316
Profit and total comprehensive income RNEE BRI &
for the year/period FHEUABRE 1,356
Dividend received from the associate during the ~ ANE[E/ HifE B B2 A A
year/period IR 2 A% 2, -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to Ll BENSERNEEBR L= 2 RA
the carrying amount of the interest in Yunnan Panva recognised BZEHRRGE M BEHRERPER:
in the consolidated financial statements:
2013
RMB’000
ARBFT
(restated)
(&51)
Equity attributable to owners of Yunnan Panva EHBELIHEE ARG ER 126,088
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEBREHEIY
interest in Yunnan Panva at 20.12% a2 A 25,369
Carrying amount of the Group's interest @?@%‘éﬁjiﬁﬁﬁm%@ﬁ]
. . BEERBZAEER
in Yunnan Panva held directly through EE L S Y EEE

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company 25,369



2013

RMB'000

AREFIT

(restated)

(=%))

Cost of unlisted investments JEEMIRE KA 293,729
Share of post-acquisition results and eI B R K E K&

other comprehensive income Hip 2w A 114,288

408,017

Amount due from a joint venture FEY—MEEERERIER 530

Details of the Group's principal joint venture as at 31 March 2014
and 2013 are as follows:

Place of

Form of business  establishment

Name of company structure  and operation
RIK

NCIEL E/ 220 S K
BEALAMABREERARA Limited liability PRC
([BRZR]) company h

(Fujian Province An Ran Gas Investment BREFAR
Co., Ltd.) (“Fujian An Ran")

The relevant activities that significantly affect the return of Fujian
An Ran require unanimous consent from the other joint venture
partners holding the remaining 49% equity interest in Fujian An
Ran. In addition, the joint arrangement does not result in either
parties having rights to assets and obligations to liabilities of
Fujian An Ran, hence the Group has accounted for Fujian An Ran
as a joint venture.

NEEMN2014% K2013E3A31B 2 X E S
Eh¥EFHBOT:

Proportion
of nominal
value of registered
capital held
by the Group Principal activities
AEERELZ
EMER 2 EEL A TEEH

2013

51% Investment holding in subsidiaries
which are engaged in distribution
and supply of gas and installation

of gas distribution facilities
RMEE D3R BRI
ARERMRE BRI L
WBARETRERR

HEEZARZEBBEEAZEZHBLIDT
ERBRERTABRTO%ER 2 Hitta &
ERHEZ-BEE I AREGERHL T
SEFE-—HHBRLAZEERERENR
HHAEEBREET ARAKREEHRERER
RER—RAELEARK-



Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint
venture's financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets ERBEE

Current liabilities REAEE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Net assets BEFE

Equity attributable to owners of BRERAEEEA A

Fujian An Ran Group FE(h 2 A

Non-controlling interests FEPE R

ERAEEEACECEZUBENBER
T e THIHBERBERN S EDERIR
BEBYBERELEAFEE E2014F3H31
AFEFBREMINTZEE - AEDLER
BEREFALEBZGEMBERE -

2013
RMB'000
AREFIT
(restated)
(&%)

284,747

1,266,943

(492,031)

(364,280)

695,379

636,929
58,450

695,379



The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Properties, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Trade receivables

Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables)

Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding other payables)

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Group's share of results of the joint venture

tHEERAESRE
BRETIIEE:

BekReEEEHR

YE RV

BNEE

8 5 R

e aE
(TREES MEMENTKIA)

FAHEMAR
(T BEEMEMNFR)

YA

A B A K
EERAEE

AEEREEAERFEFAE

2013
RMB’000
AREFIT
(restated)
(&%)

59,022

1,009,833

61,319

114,868

(167,000)

(364,280)

684,102

139,584

71,188



Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in Fujian An Ran Group
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

B B AREE RN ER R AEE R
PEEE Y NG A B SRR R

Equity attributable to owners of
Fujian An Ran Group

Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Fujian An Ran Group at 51%

Goodwill

Others

Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Fujian An Ran Group

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Listed securities
Securities listed in Hong Kong, at fair value

Unlisted securities
Equity securities (note)

Total

2013
RMB’000
AREFT T
(restated)
(E5)
BRELAEEEE A
FEfhiE s 636,929
AEBRBRELZAEEZ
B 1 %EREZ 2 LB 324,834
(S 76,846
) 6,337
AEBRBRELZAEEZ
Hm 2 REE 408,017
2013
RMB'000
AREF T
(restated)
(&)
A ERE R
EHES
REALEMZB S EAAE 44
FEEHmES
EARES (KEE) 6,946

&t 6,990



Note: The unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted equity B &
interests in private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values

cannot be measured reliably.

Welfare lottery tickets

Construction materials, spare parts and
consumables

Gas appliances

LPG

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Other receivables

Total trade and other receivables

BRIZE
REWH - BIR
R
MEE A
AT

B 5 WA
R R

H & Wk IR

B 5 N H At & U SR IR A8 B

FELEMIRERENPEEMRLZMAEE
ZIEMBEZRE ARAERARERL
AANEEEN UBESRREAAET
BEF SEMET 8 MABRENRE HARE
AR ER 2

2013
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(&31)

1,873
15,127

1,005
3,544

21,549

2013
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(&751)

24,606
(1,295)

23,311

132,651

155,962



The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally
ranging from 30 days to 90 days and extending to 180 days for
major customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over
the balances. The following is an aged analysis of the trade
receivables (net of impairment loss recognised) presented based
on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates is as
follows:

0 to 90 days 0£90H
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H
Over 180 days 1808 A E

The trade receivables with carrying amount of RMB26,142,000
(2013: RMB22,118,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group believes that the
amounts are considered recoverable.

The Group has policies for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which are based on the evaluation of collectability and
age analysis of accounts and on the management’s judgment
including the past collection history of each customer. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group uses a system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on a
regular basis.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,374,000 (2013:
RMB1,193,000) which are past due as at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 190 days (2013: 195 days).

AEELETHESREFP ZEEH KN T30
HZ90H RATEXFEREI180H A&
BEWERZEEHRFEEMEER NRS
HAR (BRI AR BEEE ) RHE
232 E ZREWGIE CREER ZBER
B)ZREBERDTMAT -

2013
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(&51)

21,856
262
1,193

23,311

BRE{E A ARB26,142,0007C (2013F : AR
#22,118,0007T ) 2 & 5 FEW G IR 3R B R
HMABBERE AEERAZEBEBEAIK
@ o

AEEERERBEFHR - UL IREFE AT
Bl BRP ZBREDT R ERERR B
ERPZATRWEH EEMNTMFTES
Al ARBRA-—ERXRFGHEEEP ZE
EEERATHEERE - TP ZEERSE
SEHEZ

REBZEHRERFIELGOEIEAREMEA
R #1,374,0007T (20134 : AR¥1,193,000
T0) Z FRMBRR  ZF RN IR E R B Hp
RSB BEBEELEF#E AEBENE
MZEEGRFETAERR 2 FEINKIE
ZFHERER 1908 (20134 :195H)



Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At beginning of the year F1
Amount written off as uncollectible Jifl 85 1 AT U2 5] 5K I8
Allowances charged to profit or loss RIB Bk 2 B
Allowances reversed in profit or loss 18 % BB 2 B
At end of the year FR

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables, which were either in severe financial
difficulties or overdue for a long period time. The Group has
made full allowance on these receivables and considered that
they are generally not recoverable.

As at 31 March 2014, included in other receivables, there are
deposits and advance payment to suppliers of RMB32,131,000
(2013: RMB43,890,000) in relation to the purchase of natural gas
and LPG products, which will be delivered within one year from
the end of the reporting period.

Also, there is an unsecured loan receivable of RMB10,000,000
(2013: nil) included in other receivables relating to advance to a
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, which is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are engaged in operation of
LPG industry in the PRC, carried interest at 10% per annum and is
repayable within one year. Interest income of RMB258,000 (2013:
nil) is recognised as other income in profit or loss in current year.

REBRERD

2013
RMB'000
AR®EF T
(restated)
(&%)

150

1,178
(33)

1,295

BRI EREZ E 5 B YA ARKER
ZHRRREAMBRAXE B —RERK
A - ANERE B 3 7% 5 WG IR (E R s A
WAR % F A — R eEUE -

M2014F3H318  HitvEIFIEBIEB B
BAARERBRERERZIES R THERZ
A FIE AREE32,131,0007T (20134F : AR
#:43,890,0007T) * FIE S B S H HIRE—
FRRAL e

H {th FE USRI I B 4R A IR B BB GRIE A
R #10,000,0007T (20134 - £&) - R —
MIEB AR RS (A—EREZER AR
HEWBARFERNPREUBERERITEZE
B)ZBARMEEFRI0%  IBR—FAE
i o A BULAARB258,0007T (20134 : ££)
RAFELEEZERBEMA



As at 31 March 2013, included in other receivables, there was
a compensation receivable of RMB60,000,000 from Yongheng
Development. During the year ended 31 March 2014, due to
the Company entered into Settlement Deed with Yongheng
Development, the compensation receivable of RMB60,000,000
was derecognised in profit or loss. Details of which is disclosed in
note 9(b).

The amounts due from a joint venture and an associate, and
amount due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. As at 31 March 2014, bank balances and cash
included a deposit of RMB39,000,000 (2013: nil) with an
original maturity of three months carrying at market rate of
4.8% per annum. The remaining bank balances and cash of
RMB235,099,000 (2013: RMB258,520,000) carried interests at
market rates which ranged from 0.02% to 3.5% (2013: 0.01%
to 3.15%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the bank balances and cash of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB250,925,000, (2013:
RMB226,051,000).

M2013F3A31 8 bR FIEBIEH K
B2 R 2 B E < A R%60,000,0007T °
REZE2014F3 8318 IEFE - HRAAQ AR
KEBEREFUEELZE BRAEESAR
#60,000,000T E RN Bz N EUB T#E R o 5F 15
I 5E(b) 1 2 ©

el — A B XKk — AR R ZRIAN
K e — R B & Bl SE R 25 2 SR B
R 2ERAREBREE-

RITEREB S BEEHASEREZHE R
BAREER A=A AT 2 EHRTER -
M2014F3A318  IRITEBKR LIRS BIEFTK
A R #39,000,0007T (20134 : £) » R 7N Bf
BAE=ZEA WEMSBFHELE% - KRR
1TH R RIRE A R ¥235,099,0005T (2013
& AR #258,520,0007T) M B 35 & K| &
N F0.02%%E3.5% (2013F :0.01% to
3.15% ) °

MR2014F3A318 REBUARBFEZR
TS NMIRE A AR250,925,0005T (2013
£ AR¥226,051,0007T) °



Included in bank balances and cash, the following amounts are BITHERRBSBETINANARBUINEE

denominated in currencies other than RMB: FTEC SR
2013
RMB'000
ARMET T
(restated)
(&751)
HKD g 16,256
usb e 16,213
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade BORNREBREESRERIBENR 2
purchases and ongoing costs with the average credit period on AXMeH KEER 2 FHEERR0R -
purchases of goods is 90 days. The following is an aged analysis T ARBRERRBEEZERAHREINZE S
of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end JE 1~ SR IE 2 BR R 47T -
of the reporting period:
2013
RMB’000
ARETTT
(restated)
(&%)
0 to 90 days 0£90H 11,509
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 901
Over 180 days 1808 LA 6,436
Trade payables Z 5 e 50AR 18,846
Advances received from customers for B RER S HWE 2
gas connection contracts B} 32,631
Piped gas customers deposits and PREBEBRRATPIRE R
other deposits received HEfiz s 20,269
Piped gas income received in advance TEYE BRI 42,636
Payable to a non-controlling interest of R —RENB AR
a subsidiary (note) FEE R RS (BT EE) =
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE A I B JE 1 Z 18 20,108

134,490



note: The payable to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
represented the consideration payable for acquisition of additional
interests of Xi'an Civigas during the year ended 31 March 2014.

On 15 May 2011, Shenzhen Yongheng Le Cai Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Le Cai”) entered into equity
transfer agreements with Mr. Yang, the executive director of
Shenzhen Le Cai (subsequently appointed as executive director of
the Company on 19 December 2011), in which Shenzhen Le Cai
acquired 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Jin Cai Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Jin Cai”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB51,006,000. Part of the consideration in the
amount of RMB35,000,000 payable to Mr. Yang will be settled in
ten equal annual installments at amount of RMB3,500,000. The
effective interest rate to discount future cash payment is 7.05%
per annum. On 1 August 2013, Mr. Yang resigned as executive
director of the Company.

Secured bank borrowings BHEFRITEE

Unsecured bank borrowings IR ITEE

Carrying amount repayable: JEEEREE:
Within one year or on demand —F AN B KEF

PRt RN — RN B AR 2 SRR E2014
FIANBILFEREBAE L P REINAE
ZRENRE-

M20119F5 8158 « RIITKIELRBHE %
BRAF (MRS ) BRI 2 RHiTE
FIEMAELRE (HEBER2011F128190 & X
AR RRNITES) FrIREEZDGE =
FoORIINEER AR R E A R%51,006,0007T
IRy Tk BER B EREER AR ([E
JHEFR ] )100% I 1 o FEF G E L E B AR
B4 % AR ¥35,000,000 T IARFEZED
Hi 4 %8 A R #3,500,00070 £ 104F R 45 5 - B
BARBENRZERFERNEA7.05% -
20138 A1H 5 A L EFERRBHIT
Exo

2013
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(&751)

15,000
11,000

26,000

26,000



All secured and unsecured bank borrowings are floating rate
borrowings of which interest rates are in the range of People’s
Bank of China plus 0.6% to 1.2% (2013: 0.56% to 1.02%) per
annum.

Certain assets of the Group are pledged for the secured bank
borrowings, details of which are set out in note 40.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
MEBFEITE
RMB’000
ARETFIT
At 1 April 2012 R201264H1H
(restated) (&%) 98
Credited to profit or loss REzmETA
(note 14) (KIsE14) (8)
At 31 March 2013 201343 H31H
(restated) (&%) 90
Charged to profit or loss RIBE R
(note 14) (MizE14) 56
At 31 March 2014 R2014%F3A31H 146

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of RMB180,349,000 (2013: RMB136,521,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These unrecognised tax
losses will expire in various dates up to 2018 (2013: 2017).

Fra AR ERMETEES A ZHER
EBE FERNFLHEARETHEINMN.6%
Z£1.2% (20134E : 0.56%%1.02% ) ©

AEBEZETEECHBEMRITEEMEE
o E B RN FE40

THARAGFERAEFEZERABEIER
ERIER ERH

Intangible
assets Others Total
BEEE Hih &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T AR®T T
156,541 4,442 161,081
(156,541) - (156,549)
- 4,442 4,532
- - 56
- 4,442 4,588

RBERR AEEEFHAEABDARSEE
B AR #180,349,0007 (20134 : A R#E
136,521,0007T ) A] A YE 5 85 AR 208 F1l o B3 7
Reefhat AR ZBEF - MW E S EERE
EHREEE ZEAERREEBBR TR
HHIE M E£20184 (20134 : 20174 ) »



Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB480,335,000 (2013:
RMB363,847,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

BIEFECEMGHE LR EKE AR A
2008F1 A1HERFTRIUEFTE IR 2K EH
BAITEMBIIE - WA BLEMG T BB QR
R 5H% F A R#480,335,0005T (20134 : A
R 363,847,00070 ) 2 E k5 4 =R R AR E B
BRI EE RRIIAEE S8 i
TR EEELNNREEZSEREEZES
Al RE & HAA] T8 B R AR o] # -

Number of shares

BAEE
2013 2013
HKD'000
BT T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of B EE
HKDO0.07 each B H#0.07TT2
TR 7,999,999,999 560,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRATE:
At the beginning of RE ) R F R
the year and the end of
the year 5,809,954,136 406,697
RMB'000
AREETF T
Presented in consolidated KR & I B K
financial statements as: 25
At the end of the year RER 390,626



On 19 October 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which the Company acquired 51% equity interest
in Baise Lianda Liquefied Petroleum Gas Co., Ltd. (“Baise”) at a
consideration of RMB5,100,000. The acquisition was completed
on 12 December 2013, on that date the control of Baise was
passed to the Group.

The principal assets of Baise are property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land. Basie has not commenced business at
the date of acquisition, while it was set up to be engaged in
wholesale and retail of LPG. The transaction was accounted for as
acquisition of assets.

Cash b

Assets acquired recognised at date of acquisition are as follow:

M2013F10A 198 AEBEH —Z BT F =
FUEBEFDZEE W= Bt AR AWK
BREemBERERBRAR ([BE])Z
51% 8 # - KB = A R ¥5,100,0007T Y 8
R2013F12A1N2HER B @ ZEHEE R
EHEITARER-

BEIREERNF BEERGBUAREE
T -RNWERH AR ARRMBEE KL
BESERERIERBBERTERH -5
Bt ABEWE-

RMB’000
AR®ETT

5,100

RUWERERRAZCRBEENT

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payment
Other receivables

Assets acquired

Net assets acquired
Non-controlling interests

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration paid

RMB’000
AREFT T
Y% BB MR E 5,295
e 4,564
H b e W 5RIE 141
BEWEEE 10,000
BEEEEEFE 5,100
FEVE R = 4,900
10,000

WERELHRSTRHEEA:
BEfNIReNRE (5,100)



The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time employees
(including executive directors), consultants, agents and
advisors of the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 3 October 2006.

As at 31 March 2014, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 408,222,455
(2013: 408,222,455), representing approximately 7.03%
(2013: 7.03%) of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 March 2014. Without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders, the total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, and the aggregate
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

No amount is payable on acceptance of an offer to grant an
option to subscribe for the shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Offer”).
The Share Option Scheme may be exercised at any time
for a period of ten years commencing from the date of
acceptance of the Offer, subject to the conditions imposed
by the board of the directors. The exercise price of the
option shares would be at a price equal to the higher of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
option; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the options; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.

No share option was granted or exercised during the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

ANAERE —BBRES ([IEIRE
&) FEUSB R BB AEE 2K
NEEEHERZAE RS HE B
BBz 6 ER2HBERRAER 22
BEE (BREHTES) LHA RE
N EA - B IR #E 5T 81 7R 2006F 10 A3 H
HEAERR o

M2014F3A318  RIEE R EFT 2 7]
BT 2R HDBEER408,222,4550%
(20134 : 408,222,455) * 1HZ 72014
F3IA3MHARR B EITRALT7.03%
(2013%F :7.03% ) e REA N RIREE
S IR AR T BN T 2 AR
EH & 7 BRAD BB BB IB AR A Bl AE
IR E BT 210% @ T A EMRF
[ /] AR E B A 35 2 B AR 8
2 RRAD AECT S R B AR B R (] B
BEETRMNZ1% °

BEARBEBEES SR LT REALQA
i zBREZZXN (T2 BAM
ROR - ERE SR AEAENR
EFII810F AEMRRREITE  HBARR
REFZ I G- BRERND 21T
EERESRTIZERRE  (WNEH
Bz B A RERMINALD
AIRM 2 W E: (NBEREBREZ
B RIS E <R 5 B B 32 A AT A 1 Bl
ZFHUTHE - R (i EE

REE2014% K201343 8318 1L &
& BEER R IT A B AR



The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options held by category of participants (including
directors) under Share Option Scheme and movements in
such holdings for both years.

Category of participant

SRERH

Directors

£z

Continuous contract employees
READHES

Consultants

EEIN

Date of grant of
share options

BRERHL A

(Note )
(Hsta)

12 April 2010
2010645128

29 November 2010
20106117298

12 April 2010
2010645128

29 November 2010
2010611298

12 April 2010
2010645128

29 November 2010
20106115298

At

1 April 2012

and

31 March 2013
R201254518
R201353A318

2,000,000

40,650,000

2,000,000

72,000,000

23,000,000

34,700,000

Reclassification

7R

(Note d)
(Wid)

(12,500,000)

12,500,000

Lapsed
during
the year

ERENR

(Note b)
(Ktitb)

{2,000,000)

(28,150,000)

{2,000,000)

(84,500,000)

(23,000,000)

(34,700,000)

TEREBERBEBERESE SHE2H
E(BRES)BAARRRBREZF
BEEMEFEZEREEZEHEN -

At
31 March 2014

R2014%£3A31R

Exercise period of Exercise price of
share options share options
BRETRDE BRETEE
HKD
(Note c)
(Hzkc)
12 April 2010 to 0.385
11 April 2013
201064R128%2013%
4A11A
1 December 2010 to 0.282
30 November 2013
2010512R1852013F
11A308
12 April 2010 to 0.385
11 April 2013
201054R128%2013%
4AN1A
1 December 2010 to 0.282
30 November 2013
201051218 52013F
11308
12 April 2010 to 0.385
11 April 2013
201054R12822013%
4AN1A
1 December 2010 to 0.282
30 November 2013
2010512818 52013F

114308



At

1 April 2012
Date of grant of and
Category of participant share options 31 March 2013 Redlassification
R2012%4A1R
SEERN BRERLAH R2013%3A318 ERR
(Note a) (Note d)
(Kizta) (Rtitd)
Agents 29 November 2010 18,250,000 -
RE 20105114298
Advisors 29 November 2010 9,000,000 =
B 20105114298
201,600,000 -
Exercisable at the end of the year 201,600,000 -
RERT P
Weighted average exercise price 0.30 -
(HKD)

MEFERE (£%)

Notes:

(@)  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

(b)  Share options lapsed at the end of the exercisable period
are deleted from the register of outstanding options. The
amount previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

()  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company's share capital.

Lapsed
during
the year

ERENR

(Note b)
i)

(18,250,000)

(9,000,000)

(201,600,000)

0.30

At Exercise period of Exercise price of
31 March 2014 share options share options
R0WEIANE  BREGEDE BREGRE
HKD
B
(Note c)
(tzc)
- 1 December 2010 to 0282
30 November 2013
2010512818 22013%F
114308
-1 December 2010 to 0.282
30 November 2013
2010512818 22013F
11308

B3 :

BREzBEHAXEARETEY
MRia AL -

RITEBEREB 2 BREESNRTT
150 B8 A 2 E 11 9 U B = 22 A0 20 A B
DRERZ e FETHER B RS
BEREE-

BARBETHE BITARKAR
AR IR H b RO B A
ZATHEBAFLAE-



Notes: (Continued)

(d)  These options were held by Mr. Yang and Mr. Yeung, they
resigned as directors, both with effect on 1 August 2013.
They remain as directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group,
therefore these options were re-classified from directors
category to continuous contracts employees category.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 8 April 2013, the Company and Ping Da Development
Limited (the “Subscriber”), a company wholly-owned
by Dr. Mo, an executive director and chairman of the
Company who has 7.38% shareholding in the Company
as at 31 March 2013, entered into a warrants subscription
agreement pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue and allot to the Subscriber,
and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, an aggregate of 1,135,000,000 warrants (“Warrants”)
conferring the rights to subscribe for an aggregate of
1,135,000,000 subscription shares at the initial subscription
price of HKD0.205 per subscription share for the purpose
of providing incentive to Dr. Mo to continue to devote
and contribute effort to the Group. The Warrants issue
price is HKD0.01 per warrant and the gross proceeds
from the Warrants subscription of HKD11,350,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB9,021,000) had been
paid by the Subscriber in cash upon the completion of
warrants subscription agreement. The warrants subscription
agreement was approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company in July 2013. The subscription rights
attaching to the Warrants is vested at grant date and may
be exercised during a period of 36 months commencing
from the date of issue in accordance with the terms of
warrants subscription agreement. No Warrants were
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2014 and the
Company had 1,135,000,000 warrants outstanding as at 31
March 2014.

Bt : (4F)

(d) ZEEBREABRELERBAESTE
EEA HER2013F8A1HEITE
ERE-HEBTASESGHBEA
REERE At ZSERERE
HHBEFTHEEHESNIRESE
Al o

BERIERTHEAZTHEREINKRRAK
G EREZHER -

MR2013F4A8H ' ARRIEFERRES
AR ([REA] BEARRITES
NMEFEB L (R2013F3A318EAE
NAR)7.38% %) 2 EWER 2 AR))E]
VRABREZREHZ B A7 B
B IGHR /mﬁa@ﬁ%/\%ﬁ&@ﬁé 7 58
BAEAKHERERBE A K
1 ,135,000,0001% B I #E 75 ([ B A% #E

&) Bﬁm%%ﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁ%@ﬁ{“tﬂm
E%HXT%/%%O 2057'E, %D/\
1,135,000,0000% R EEAZ 1D - LA*&@JET@
THESAEETE RN - RIREE

BITEASHRRERZ B0, om R
HﬂZE*L REBZ2HEBRBEBRLRBBK
11,350,000 (MERKHN AR
9,021,00073)Eﬁaé,@ﬁﬁ/\ﬁémﬂx%mb
BiHaTREUARS - RBREEFER
E%T%%%mzkﬁmﬁ%mﬁ%mmﬁm
ot - RIREFEMN B < REENE T B
HASR IS8 - W A IR IR FR AR M SR SR B 1 rk M
RAEEIT B H A 36 A EAETE - B E
2014F3A3 1B L FEMERREEE
T8 AR ER2014%3 8318 M ARTT
i 2 RIHERE A1,135,000,00015 °



The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value
of the Warrants. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the Warrants are based on the
management’s best estimation. The values of Warrants vary
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Valuation date 31 July 2013

Stock price HKDO.178 per share
Subscription price HKDO0.205 per share
Expected life 3 years

Expected volatility 38.5%

Risk-free rate 0.503% per annum

Note: Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 3
years.

The fair value of the warrants is approximately
RMB34,632,000 as at valuation date and the Group
recognised the difference of RMB25,611,000 between the
fair value and gross proceeds, as a share-based payment
expense in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2014.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operate by the PRC
government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute define percentages, ranging from 12% to 25%,
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits in compliance with the applicable regulations of the PRC.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the rules and
regulations of the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped
at HKD1,250 (HKD1,000 before 1 June 2012) to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is
matched by employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions under the respective schemes above.

RBEE R A E 2 BT RA — AR
A A ERBREEAABZEANBR
DREERE 2 &M - RREREZ
EBERETIBRKRZ TRZHME M
AE - ZBEA 2B ARBIELT

HEBH 201347H31H
& B TR E¥0.1787T
REEE WA #0.2057T
TEHRF R 34

T8 B8 & 38.5%

o 7 g & F%E0.503%

fist: HEHRBIERAARBBEIFZK
B2 LR IR E °

RREEFEZARERGEERROABAR
#534,632,0007T ' AEBRE £2014F
3A31R EFEER R EEMSEFRIE
4EE v el = AR®25,611,0007T
TEBUAR G AEMR 2 MBS ABE
W °

AABRTEMBAT ZEE VHREBMNZ
BARERNTEIKE - BRETBEME R BN
TEXRAZIEEADL (N TF12%E25% ) A
BB EHRUATERR Z@EAER -

AEBEMERESRIELATESEERRE
BINMGEBIE RN 2 A EREBEE R LA H M
NIECTE TR EERASBEEENHEF
B HEEANESHEAEE - AEERER
ITERARATLBRHEATELEERELS%
g IR AE%1,2500T (FR201296 A 18 &8
#1,00070) £ 3% - 18 B IF B IR 48 B b 71 4
R NEEZWE—FBBBRIES ElsrEH
RIKEFETEEHIEE MK



The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB7,672,000 RERERZFXZEEARK7,672,0007T

(2013: RMB6,170,000) represents contributions payable to these (20134 : AR #6,170,000T)IERE =

schemes by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014. No 201453318 EFEAEERZETE 2

forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution FERT LR - 7A201445 201353 H31H - &

payable in the future years at 31 March 2014 and 2013. EUR Mz BRI AR EIRL R 2R F 2 e 2 1
e

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial RGeSk HEM o A EE N K

statements, the Group entered into the following transactions SEEBBATREANREI L TNIIR S :

with related parties during the year:

2013
RMB'000
ARBFTT
(restated)
(&E51))
Rental expense paid to Yongheng Development i Tk B2 E (Hta) 2
(note a) HEeMX 622
Purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi Provincial ~ [AIBRPEE KARMMD B R A A
Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (note b) (M aEb) HERAR -
The above transactions were made on terms mutually agreed A £ B TR E 5 1 7€ 2 (R RH#ETT ©
between both parties.
Notes: Bt 5
(@) Yongheng Development is a substantial shareholder of the (@ KEBRA/AARZEZRE M20135F3
Company, which had 29.74% shareholding in the Company as at A31B AR RGF]29.74%0%# & B 514
31 March 2013 and being owned and controlled by Mr. Yang and EERBGEEEE (BRERLTB)EH-
Mr. Yeung, who are brothers.
(b)  Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. is a connected person of (b) PBRABRARBROERRRFEARABINE
the Company by holding of 40% equity interests in Xi‘an Civigas, a ANEIALFRZA0%MEE  BARR) 2 @&

subsidiary of the Company. Ao



The directors considered they are the sole management personnel
of the Group, and their remuneration during the year is disclosed
in note 12. Mr. Yang, Mr. Yeung and Dr. Mo have substantial
shareholding in the Company. The remuneration of the directors
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individual and market trends.

The Group leased its investment properties, as set out in note 18
under operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from 3 to 8 years at fixed rental. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases.

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
Over five years AFE

Net property rental income earned during the year was
RMB956,000 (2013: RMB385,000) with minimal outgoings. All of
the properties held have committed tenants for the next 7 years
(2013: 8 years). No contingent rent was arranged for the above
operating lease arrangements.

EEARBEER/RAEER —NEEAE &
ERFRAZMERME12RRE -BRER
£ BRBEERRBLIRARAEEER
Pt - BEFZH Mt H B B 2 RIEE R A
TZRBETEBEERE -

WHTEE18ATE ARBRBEEEHE RN
BEHSHHERENE BN REESF
HA3EsF -HERK—RNEREFZE
BOMSEL BXRERERETHES

AR

RBEHRR AEERETAIBELERE
HEPFEANZARRERSMT

2013
RMB’000
ARETFIT
(restated)
(E7)

700

RE_ZEZFRAF (BREERMRF) 2,750

1,891

5,341

RAFERDZNERSFRABARE
956,0007T (20134 : A R #385,0007T) - K
BELZAS -FIBWERKEKIF (2013
F 8F)EAAKEF - LMK ERELR
WELZHRAEE -



Certain office premises of the Group were leased under operating BEECEHELHE AEBABETHAE

lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for Y CEFEEEFHAIETF (20134
terms of 1 to 7 years (2013: 1 to 7 years). Rentals are fixed for 127F) RIEEHERAESHIZTE -
the relevant lease term. At the end of the reporting period, the WEHAR AEERBEIEIELCEHEZ
Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments R FEERAEIRBERAT :

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2013
RMB’000
ARBTT
(restated)
(&751)
Within one year —FA 5,603
In the second to fifth years, inclusive REZEZEAF (BREEMTE) 4,776
Over five years AFLE 1,167
11,546
2013
RMB’000
ARBTT
(restated)
(&%)
Capital commitment BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ERANERRGEE M B RE
provided in the consolidated financial BB ERRX
statements in respect of:
Property, plant and equipment M HE LR 19,616
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had entered RBEBHR ARREEHETE=ZFHEE
into a contract with several third parties for capital injection B —RF ARG &8 AEEZEAHED
for set up a new company, the Group’'s committed amount is B A AR %114,000,0007T (20134F : AR#E

RMB114,000,000 (2013: RMB114,000,000). 114,000,0007T ) °



2013

RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
(restated)
(&%)
Other commitment H A i
Other expenditure contracted for but not BEENBRNEE P EHwE
provided in the consolidated financial MIENHSEE
statements in respect of prepaid lease payments H fth 2 -
The Group's share of the capital commitments made jointly with AEERESECEBRELASE H(HER
other joint venturers relating to its joint venture, Fujian An Ran b e & EHRAIEL 2 EARRENT :
Group, is as follows:
2013
RMB’000
ARBTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not EENERREEDE
provided in the joint venture's financial B 7 sk B B 2 W
statements in respect of acquisition of Wz wEREHEZ
property, plant and equipment AR 56,946
The Group pledged certain assets to a bank to secure certain REEE M —ARTERE TEEUREAR
bank borrowings of the Group. Carrying amounts of the assets SEETRITEE -BRKRTEBURE
pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings of the Group were REBZRITEEZEEREBERT
as follows:
2013
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
(restated)
(&%)
Property, plant and equipment R N ] 7,073
Prepaid lease payments AR S 8,208

15,281



Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial instruments are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
qguoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Fair value as at

Financial instruments 31 March 2014
£WMIA R201453H31B 2 A RE
Equity securities classified as Listed equity securities in

available-for-sale investments Hong Kong — RMB33,000
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

REETBARRATRR DR REBZ ERAES
BAHHERE ZRAFES — AR #33,0007T

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the other financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

AEBHS BB TADRSHREAREZ DA
BifE - TREHINABEEUHFMBEEER
AREZERN CFRIRMERZEETERE
ABIR)  URAAEFEMBARERRF
BEABREL AR BFEGABBRED B
E—MANEFE =R

s  FRAZAREFEINERMISEANE
REEXBBEZMERE (KKH

B):

s AR AREFETNEE (AER)
& (MEBRES)ERRE — &5
FroREAIZ AIBREESAERA
BiEGL &

o F=BHAAMEFETE ALIFRIEA
BERMSHE (TAERBARE)Z
BEXABZEETEGE-

Fair value Valuation techniques and
hierarchy  key inputs
ARERD REFERIE@BARE

Level 1 Quoted bid price in an active market

F—A&R WEBRTHEZEARE

RRBEEFRR REAM BRI AR
RLHEMPTBEERM B AR REE
BEARERE



On 30 April 2014, the Company, Yongheng Development, and
Astrum Capital Management Limited (“Astrum”) entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant to which Astrum agreed, on a
best effort basis, to place the Consideration Shares (see note
9(b)) to not fewer than six placees who and whose ultimate
beneficial owners are (i) third parties independent of and not
connected with the Company or any of its connected persons;
and (i) are not acting in concert with Yongheng Development
or its associate within the meaning of the takeovers code
under Securities and Futures Commission. The placing price is
HKDO.205 per Consideration Share. The gross proceeds from the
placing is estimated to be approximately HKD354,200,000 and
net proceeds from the placing, after deducting related placing
commission and other expenses in connection with the placing,
is approximately HKD341,800,000. The net placing price for the
placing is approximately HKDO0.198 per Consideration Share. Such
proceeds will be used as general working capital of the Company.

On 21 May 2014, the directors of the Company announced
that the placing was lapsed because of insufficient orders were
received. Accordingly, the directors of the Company resolved
not to proceed with the placing, while still seeking placing
opportunity to placees within the 2014 Placing Period.

On 21 May 2014, Tianjin Civigas Technology Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin
Civigas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into equity transfer agreements with independent third parties,
pursuant to which, Tianjin Civigas acquired 100% equity interest
of Tianjin Binhai New District Dagong Anbao Gas Co., Ltd.
(“Dagong Anbao”) at a total consideration of RMBS8,200,000.
Dagong Anbao is principally engaged in the wholesale and retail
LPG business in Tianjin in PRC. The acquisition is completed on 27
May 2014 and regarded as an acquisition of business. The Group
is in the process of estimating the fair value of net identifiable
assets of Tianjin Civigas with the assistance of an external
valuer. As such, the financial impacts are not disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

R2014F4A308  ARQ A kIBER LT
R EAREEARAR ([PUE4RRA]) RIS —
DEREHS  Hit AR SIS HEE
RERTPANBEREALRERERD (R
BIEEo(b)) s AR AREREEZER A A)
i RV N/NI= =1 = R S N 2 NG i K R
BEEZBYE = RIMBEEFRPE
ERERZESRB TR ERKEBEER KK
BBAZ—BITHAL BEBEBATRAE
f& {5 5 #0.205 T - Be & B IFFT S B AR
5T A 497 #354,200,0007T © 0 M8 B Ad &
chERREZEMBAS% BEESEME
IKIBFEE B A 341,800,0007T - At EEIE
ZHREEBFBEBHASHRARERDE0.198
TS RBREBEARRZ —REESR
{jéi o

MR2014F5 8218 AR R EZEMEEE S
K RABREZRESENNESHE - B
bt RRREBRENETRE  BEHERD
H R WANFE20144F R & B N = SKAE A
ZEEKS-

MR2014F58218 KRR 2 EMBARIK
FERRMREIBHTERAR ([REFRFR]) BB
MNEZHEMBREEREAR B REFR
WBREEEFTERNBLZRBRERA A
([RBZR]) 2HI100%KE  AREAAR
#8,200,0007T c KB LZREB AR KIEN
REBRECIAMELRZEEH ZWEER
201445827 B IR EIRBE —TB X - K
SEIER —RBINEEER 2 15 B T &R E
FRZUMPEEFEZALE Btk B1%
FEWENREVBERERANEE-



On 22 May 2014, Tianjin Civigas entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which,
Tianjin Civigas acquired 100% equity interest of Tianjin Baoyuan
Taida Gas Co., Ltd. (“Baoyuan Taida”) at a total consideration
RMB2,640,000. Baoyuan Taida is principally engaged in the
wholesale and retail LPG business in Tianjin in PRC. The
acquisition is completed on 27 May 2014 and regarded as an
acquisition of business. The Group is in the process of estimating
the fair value of net identifiable assets of Baoyuan Taida with the
assistance of an external valuer. As such, the financial impacts are
not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the
reporting period includes:

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIRE

Available-for-sale investments AIHEERE

Other receivables E {th e U 5RIE

Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERE
Liabilities afE

Other payables Hh pE A RRIE
Total assets less liabilities BEEREE
Capital and reserves B A K G 1

Share capital f& s

Reserves (note) it (MI3E)
Total equity HarE

M2014F5822H0  REFREB T HE=FF]
VREEEAR  FL - RER R RET
ERTERRBEEERAR ([BRRE])
100% %4 - R E AR ARK2,640,0007° &
BREFBEPRKEMUEBIRCRAER
TEE - ZWE S R2014F5 A27 B =kt
BAIEWEE—THER - AEBIER —RINEE
BN 2B MM EIRTE 2 W A B EF
BzAnB Al BB EWBENZEE T

ARBRBERRZMBEARRBEREE

2013
RMB'000
AREF T
(restated)
(&31)

489
420,092
44
61,097
86,841
28,021

596,584

(1,880)
594,704
390,626
204,078

594,704



Note:

Reserves

The following table sets out the components of the reserves of the
Company and the movements thereof during the current and prior year.

At 1 April 2012 (restated) 1R201264R18 (E71)

Loss and total comprehensive AR F51E K
expense for the year 2EALBE

At 31 March 2013 H2013F3A31H
(restated) (Z51)

Loss for the year AEEEAR

Change in fair value of AfHEREL
available-for-sale investments A fp A& &)

Total comprehensive expenses ~ ANFE2E Y A
for the year
BREXRNZFE
RORRESE 2
FEHIE
RETRREEER
payment expense in relation to A% AEEH
issue of warrants NE &

Effect of share option lapsed

Proceeds from issuance of
warrants

Recognition of share-based

At 31 March 2014 R201453H318

Share
premium

i
RMB'000
ARETT

788,187

788,187

788,187

GEE

B3]
TREINARAFEZ BRI D RERAFE K
BEFELE
Contributed Share-based  Investments
surplus Capital compensation  revaluation Accumulated
(note) reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BARH WRRD £ 52
(KtzE) BAGE MemE REEMEE ZEER CEH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETT AREFR
104,932 7,721 14,313 18 (428,187) 486,984
- - - - (282,906) (282,906)
104,932 7,721 14,313 18 (711,093) 204,078
- - - - (100,909) (100,909)
= = = (1) = (1)
- - - (11) (100,909) (100,920)
- - (14,313) - 14,313 -
- - 9,021 - - 9,021
- - 25,611 - - 25,611
104,932 7,721 34,632 7 (797,689) 137,790
e : BEHABKREKARDTE BTG EEHEE W HEHE

Note: The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued and the value of net assets of the

underlying subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(as amended), a company may not declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for

believing that (i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the

Company'’s assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities

and its issued share capital and share premium account.

BB ARz EEFEEH - RIEARE19814F
BIE (B1ERT) ARIEU TER R AT AELESH
AREIRSOR TR BSIELE DR : 408 2 #IEH 48
(VRRA RIS B KA s RALEE R BB
NARREEZERESEALINEEE BE
TTRRAN R B 17 i (B AR 2 4858 -

ﬁT»EEﬂD



As at 31 March 2013, the income from available-for-
sale investments of RMB11,300,000 was offsetting with

720133 A310 ' REAJHTEERENWA
AR #11,300,0007T B B4R & B 75 ik R 3Rk 3R

corresponding other payable in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed by Group effective
Name of company*# establishment the Group interest
AL/
Gk RBE AEEEE  AREERER
2013
IR RRRERAT PRCY US$60,000,000 100%
(Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd.) i 60,000,000 T
GBMTERXARERAR  PRC RMB10,000,000 100%
(Mian Zhu City Han Wang R EI* (2013: RMB5,000,000)
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.) AK%10,000,0007C
(0135 AR
5,000,0007T)
BHPRIRARAT PRCY RMB30,000,000 100%
(Mian Zhu Civigas Co., Ltd) & (2013: RMB16,308,800)
AR 30,000,007
(2013%:
AR %16,308,8007T)
amRERRRRE PRC* RMB15,000,000 100%
EREFAR hE AR %15,000,0007C
(Mian Zhu City Long Teng

Gas Installation Co., Ltd.)

MHERE 2 E Al B SRR VR 8K

M2014%F &2013%F3A31H KRRz &

MEBARFBNT
Held by Held by
the Company the Company
directly indirectly Principal activities
HAMAEERE  AALTEEKE IEXE
2013 2013
100% - Investment holding
RERR
- 100%  Distribution and supply of
gas
DHEREEMRR
- 100%  Distribution and supply of
gas
PERBERR
- 100% Installation of gas

distribution facilities
ERMBEBRN



Name of company*#

ARER

B RURBRAA
(Yan Ting Civigas Co., Ltd.)

bNERRRRERAA
(Bei Chuan County Civigas
Co., Ltd.)

ERPRMRARALT

(Chongging Civigas Co., Ltd.)

ETEARMRERAH
(Fu Ping Civigas Co., Ltd.)

BETRRRERAT
(BRHER)
(Xi'an Civigas)

TR RREERAT
(Yan Bian Civigas Co., Ltd.)

|

B ERMRBRAT
(BlewR)
(Huaihua Civigas Co., Ltd.)
(Huaihua Civigas)

Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed by

establishment the Group
HRAL/
AL REEEE
PRC? RIB20,000,000
e AR20,000,0007
PRC? RIBG,000,000
e AR 6,000,007
PRC? RIB20,080,000
e AR 520,080,007
PRC* RIB10,000,000
i ARE10,000,0007
PRC RIVB62,080,000
G (2013: RMBA40,000,000)
AR 562,080,000
(20135 :
AR#40,000,0007T)
PRC RIB10,000,000
e AR510,000,0007
PRC RIB18,180,000
e AR 18,180,000

Group effective
interest

ARERRER
2013

100%

100%

100%

80%

70%

100%

55%

Held by
the Company
directly

HALRERRA
2013

Held by
the Company
indirectly

BALARRES
2013

100%

100%

100%

80%

70%

100%

55%

Principal activities

Distribution and supply
of gas and installation
of gas distribution
facilities

DHEREERER

KRMREERE

Distribution and supply of
gas

PERUERMR

Distribution and supply
of gas and installation
of pipe gas distribution
facilities

DEREEMRRERM

Distribution and supply of
gas

PHREEMR

Sales and distribution
of qas, design of gas
pipeline and related
maintenance

HERDEME
FAMREER
ETREEE

Distribution and supply of
gas

PERERMR

Transportation,
distribution and retail
of LPG

B5 HERTERLR



Name of company*#

ARER

MNP RBRBRAA
(Guizhou Civigas Co., Ltd.)

EHHRANERAT
(ERHR)

(Yunnan Civigas)

BlrREBRRES
BRAT
(Huaihua Civigas Petroleum
Gas Supply Co., Ltd.)
REPRBRARD A
(Xupu Civigas Co., Ltd.)

ERERTRMRARLA
(Chongging Kunlun Civigas
Co., Ltd)

ZHERTRARERAR
(Yunnan Kunlun Civigas
Co., Ltd)

RIBEH MR
ARAA
(Changshun County Civigas
Co., Ltd.)

Wl R RBRAT
(Sichuan Civigas Co., Ltd.)

Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed by

establishment the Group
HRAL/
AL REEEE
PRC RIB76,000,000
e AE 76,000,000
PRC RIB26,260,000
e (2013 RMB7,560,000)
AR26,260,0007
(20135 :
ARH7,560,0007T)
PRC RIB26,000,000
HE AR 26,000,000
PRC RIB1,000,000
e AR 1,000,007
PRC RIB10,000,000
e AE 10,000,000
PRC RIB10,000,000
e AK 10,000,000
PRC RIS, 000,000
e AR5,000,0007T
PRC RIBS,000,000
HE AR5,000,0007T

Group effective
interest
FREERER
2013
100%
100%
100%
28%

Held by
the Company
directly

HALRERRA
2013

Held by
the Company
indirectly

BALARRES
2013

100%

100%

100%

28%

Principal activities

Transportation,
distribution and retail
of LPG

B8 MERTERLR

Transportation,
distribution and
retail of LPG

B% HERTERLR

Transportation,
distribution and
retail of LPG
Ba PERTERLR
Wholesale and
retail of LPG
HERTERLR
Wholesale and

retail of LPG
HERTERIE

Wholesale and
retail of LPG
BERTERIR

Wholesale and
retail of LPG
RERTERIR

Wholesale and
retail of LPG
HERTERILE



Place of Held by Held by

incorporation/  Capital contributed by~ Group effective the Company the Company
Name of company*# establishment the Group interest directly indirectly Principal activities
AmAL/
PEEL R AREEE  AREERER BMALFERRE  BADAMERE  FEER
2013 2013 2013

BZPRRLRERAA PRC RMB4,000,000 - - - Wholesale and r

(Xi'an Civigas LPG i AR 4,000,000 etail of LPG

Co., Ltd) HERTERILR
REHDRMARE PRC RMB20,000,000 - - - Wholesale and

RO (RRHER) i AR%20,000,0007C retail of LPG

(Tianjin Civigas) HERTERILR
ATk BENHRR PRC RMB125,000,000 100% - 100%  Lottery agency

ARAR (RYILF) H AR%125,000,0007C YERE

(Shenzhen Le Cai)
RmkBERHRRE PRC RMB10,800,000 100% - 100%  Lottery agency

BRAR CRYIER) G AR%10,800,0007C VERE

(Shenzhen Jin Cai)
RIFFLETRERKHE  PRC RMB18,000,000 100% 45% 55%  Lottery agency

EBAF (Shenzhen Cai Cai  FE AR #18,000,0007C VERE

Le Electronic Entertainment

Technology Development Ltd.)
i Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC. i R EEMZINEGEE RS-
#  Sino-foreign joint equity enterprise registered in the PRC. oo RHREFMzRIEEEERE-
#%  The Group obtained control through investment in a non-wholly- #t AEEFEBNIFETERENBRAREEFR

owned subsidiary, Huaihua Civigas. & HUS 1

##  English translated names are for identification only. i R R TEEHER
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the FARBEARFE T WE QA EET
years and at the end of both years. FAEHES -
All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective FHmENBAREEREES BRI
place of incorporation/establishment. /B B AR
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, RABESRBLERMAINZARA 2B R
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally AYAEB EBEREEFEEEATE-
affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of MR REMMB AR ZFHE NAAESR
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the AEFEERBRILE-

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.



The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries TRINTEEERNFERES 2 ANEEIESR

of the Group that have material non-controlling interests: BEMAWNBRARFE:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and Total comprehensive
and principal voting rights held by income attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
MR LEER FERERERZ FERERENS
WELREH TEEXHHN BEREERRRERLS 2ERALE Rt FERER
2013 2013 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT
(restated)
(&%)
Huaihua Civigas PRC 45% 3,176 22,253
BlEhR h
Xi'an Civigas PRC 30% 3,002 24,728
ARPER F
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests 12,205
BRFERER BUFEAMBAR
59,186
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the REERFERERZ CSAEEMBEARZ
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests MBENBEHINMAT - T HBEERBE

is set out below. The summarised financial information below EEBARRIREKEAI S5 -
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.



Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Revenue

Expenses

Profit for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the Company

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests

Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year

Net cash inflow (outflow) from
operating activities

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash (outflow) inflow from
financing activities

Net cash inflow (outflow)

mMEEE

FnBEE

mEBAE

FRBRME
ZAN/NEIE? YW aE i
FEPER =R

WA

B3

AR 3 A
ZAN/NEIE? DN A apig D
2R AR

FE PR RS 21 AR 0 ) Ko
EHWALLR

AR F i A K
2HWALLER

REXBEEZ
BanrA ORt)F8R

REEBHELZBRSRLFR

MERDELZ
Be ORb) RAFER

BanRA RH)F8E

2013
RMB’000
AREF T
50,323
21,158
(22,030)
(317)
26,881
22,253
180,438

(173,372)

7,066

3,890

3,176

7,066

(6,570)

(1,004)

2,517

(5,057)



Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Revenue

Expenses

Profit for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the Company

Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests

Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year

Dividends paid to a non-controlling interest
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Net cash (outflow) inflow from
investing activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow

RYEE

=

b

WL
b
=
%S

MEEE

b

iEJA=NE

s

/

ZN/NEIE? YW AR i

FEER M 5

LN

B3

AR 3 A

ZAUNIE F W A =pi el D
2HWALLER

FE PR RS 21 R 0 ) Ko
AR

NS R PN E R AN L
7 — R 2 RS
REXBELEZBRSRAFR

RERBELZ
Be ORd) RAFE

MELTHELE RS ML FHE

RERMAFHE

2013
RMB'000
ARET T
49,355
84,605
(51,535)
57,697
24,728
103,105

(93,097)

10,008

7,006

3,002

10,008
1,050

16,265

12

(3,880)

12,397
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2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTRT AREBTT AR®ETT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&&E5) (&&&E5) (#£E5)) (#=E5))

RESULTS &
Revenue WA 769,456 642,924 560,723 486,049
Profit (loss) before tax BrEATR A (BE) (464,215) 267,728 52,360 279,100
Income tax (expense) credit PrEH (FAx)E% 138,680 (19,598) (12,004) (5,856)
Profit (loss) for the year REF A (BFE) (325,535) 248,130 40,356 273,244
Profit (loss) for the year ARG 2

attributable to: AKEE T (EE)

Owners of the Company PN/NCIE 2N (335,415) 240,731 36,685 268,737

Non-controlling interests FEfE IR = 9,880 7,399 3,671 4,507

(325,535) 248,130 40,356 273,244

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BERE 1,365,849 1,827,995 1,160,436 1,030,036
Total liabilities BEBEE (224,217) (356,077) (180,746) (154,056)
Net assets BEFE 1,141,632 1,471,918 979,690 875,980
Equity attributable to owners NABEE A

of the Company FE(LHE = 1,082,446 1,421,562 935,634 835,085
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR A 59,186 50,356 44,006 40,895
Total equity g 1,141,632 1,471,918 979,690 875,980

Comparative figures are restated. Details are out in note 2 to the REFELEY FIBEHNGEE A FRMRM T
consolidated financial statements. 2
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